Myra Thompson

From: Sophie Dwyer
Sent: Monday, 29 August 2016 11:11 AM
To: Darcy Garlick-Kelly; David Larkings; Janet Cumming; Tony.Bradshaw@ehp.qgld.gov.au;

simone.ventura@ehp.gld.gov.au; Peter.Kind@daf.gld.gov.au;
Richard Watts@daf.qld.gov.au; MCKAY Adrian; Suzanne Huxley

Cc: Virginia Berry; Justin Carpenter
Subject: RE: Final HHRA responses
Dear Darcy
Our comments are as follows:
e HHRA has stated objective of assessing the “potential risks” associated wth “ ent and ongoing use
of the site”. The HHRA does not take into account that the popul akey has historic exposures
to the contaminants at the site, and many people already have ele e concentrations of

PFOS/PFHxS due to that exposure. The HHRA does not addgess
take to reduce their serum PFOS/PFHXS serum concentratighs. Fo
on consumption of certain foods, particularly beef, eggs and\i$ v@

ea that the community should
gmple, it appears that the advice
{icsigned to prevent a consumer

exceeding the TDI. It is not clear that this level of exp ould £nable someone with an already
elevated serum concentration to lower that concentrat d thus reduce their risk.

e We also found an issue that we missed initially. it says, for example on p70, “...where the sum
of the sum of PFOS, PFOA, PFHxS and PFH g tween approximately 65-70% of the detected
PFAS” , it should be changed to

“where the sum of the sum of PFOS, PF d PFHxA ranged between approximately 65-
70% by mass of the tested PFAS a i
Similar change needs to be made &Kereyércancgntrations are summed, or compared as percentages.

Regards
Sophie Dwyer

Sophie Dwyer PSM

Executive Director, Health Protection Branch

Prevention Division, Department of Health| Queensland Government
15 Butterfield Street, QLD

t. 07 33289266 m.

e. sophie.dwyer@health.qld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

Customers First Idra s into action QunLuih potential i-'i'/] Be courageous Q Empower people Queensland

Government
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From: Darcy Garlick-Kelly [mailto:darcy.garlick-kelly@premiers.qgld.gov.au]

Sent: Monday, 29 August 2016 9:00 AM

To: Sophie Dwyer; David Larkings; Janet Cumming; Tony.Bradshaw@ehp.qgld.gov.au; simone.ventura@ehp.qld.gov.au;
Peter.Kind@daf.qld.gov.au; Richard.Watts@daf.qld.gov.au; MCKAY Adrian; Suzanne Huxley

Cc: Virginia Berry; Justin Carpenter

Subject: Final HHRA responses

Importance: High

Hi all,
A quick reminder to please have your responses to the final HHRA report sent through by 1pm today.
That will allow time to collate the responses and send through to Defence by 2pm.

Cheers,

Darcy
9 Darcy Garlick-Kelly :i;

Policy Officer

Environment Policy

Department of the Premier and Cabinet @
ieSAld

DR, Phone: (07) 3003 9487 Email: darcy.garlick-kelly@pre .@)v.au

Queensland Executive Building, Level 14, 100 George Street, Bri QLW
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

Sent: Thursday, 25 August 2016 2:55 PM

To: 'Sophie Dwyer' <Sophie.Dwyer@health.qglo u>; 'david.larkings@health.qld.gov.au'

<david.larkings@health.qld.gov.au>; 'Janet_CumWhealth.qld.gov.au’ <Janet Cumming@health.qld.gov.au>;

‘Tony.Bradshaw@ehp.qld.gov.au' <To@ﬁradshaw@e p.gld.gov.au>; 'simone.ventura@ehp.qld.gov.au'

<simone.ventura@ehp.qld.gov.au?eﬁ?\hggdaf.qld.gov.au' <Peter.Kind@daf.qld.gov.au>;

'‘Richard.Watts@daf.qld.gov.au' £Réchard.Wa 0 daf.gld.gov.au>; '"MCKAY Adrian' <Adrian.Mckay@dnrm.gld.gov.au>
L

review times [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

From: Darcy Garlick-Kelly

see link below)

Please note the new deadline pm Monday 29 August.

Please have feedback sent through by 1pm to give us time to collate the response.
Cheers,

Darcy
I E]

Darcy Garlick-Kelly

AT AT TDELLS Pollcy Officer
Queensland Environment Policy
Government
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Phone: (07) 3003 9487 Email: darcy.garlick-kelly@premiers.qgld.gov.au
Executive Building, Level 14, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Harvey, Renee MS [mailto:renee.harvey@defence.gov.au]

Sent: Thursday, 25 August 2016 2:33 PM

To: 'sophie.dwyer@health.qld.gov.au’; 'janet.cumming@health.qld.gov.au’; 'suzanne.huxley@health.qgld.gov.au’;
'Richard.Watts@daf.qld.gov.au'; 'tony.bradshaw@ehp.qgld.gov.au'; 'MCKAY Adrian' <Adrian.Mckay@dnrm.gld.gov.au>
Cc: Virginia Berry <Virginia.Berry@premiers.qld.gov.au>; Pearce, Vicki MS 1 <vicki.pearcel @defence.gov.au>; Huck,
Josephine MS <josephine.huck@defence.gov.au>; JTF633 FCE AMAB Q Store <IMCEAEX-
_O=RAAF_OU=AG1_cn=Recipients_cn=DEPRMIDB+20JTF633+20FCE+20AMAB+20Q+20Store@drn.mil.au>; 'Archer,
Michael J.' <Mlichael.J.Archer@aecom.com>; 'Derham, Stuart' <SDerham@golder.com.au>; 'Mitchell, Fran'

<FMitchell@golder.com.au>; 'Lee, Frances (Fortitude Valley)' <Frances.Lee@aecom.c

Subject: FW: Oakey HHRA | revised QLD gov review times [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED @

Hi all,

The next version of the Oakey HHRA for your review can be access th elow.

File Description Si O

0207-AACO-EI2-2016-HHRA RevE Redacted.pdf 28 B

Please note that the sections that have changed materia the Wersion you previously reviewed are highlighted.
Also attached is the comments log explaining hg !! co on the previous version have been addressed.
Many thanks,

Renee

Renee Harvey

Contractor to Defence

U —
ve).

Given the timing of this email, we will require mments back by 2pm Monday (29 August).

From: Harvey, Renee M NZ
Sent: Wednesday, 24 Augu 6 08:55

To: 'sophie.dwyer@health.qgld.gtVv.au'; 'janet.cumming@health.qgld.gov.au'; 'suzanne.huxley@health.qgld.gov.au’;
'Richard.Watts@daf.qgld.gov.au'; 'tony.bradshaw@ehp.qld.gov.au'; 'MCKAY Adrian'

Cc: 'Virginia Berry'; Pearce, Vicki MS 1; Huck, Josephine MS; 'Lee, Frances (Fortitude Valley)'; 'Archer, Michael 1.';
'Derham, Stuart'; 'Mitchell, Fran'

Subject: RE: Oakey HHRA | revised QLD gov review times [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED

Good morning all,

DOH-DL 16/17-042xr sage o s



Further to my email below, we expect to have the next version of the HHRA through to you by noon tomorrow (25
August).

We would appreciate any final comments back by noon on Monday (29 August).
Material changes to the report will be highlighted so you can more easily see where the main changes have been made.

Many thanks,
Renee

Renee Harvey
Contractor to Defence
M:

From: Harvey, Renee MS

Sent: Monday, 22 August 2016 16:31
To: 'sophie.dwyer@health.qgld.gov.au'; ‘janet.cumming@health.qgld.gov.au'; 'su
'Richard.Watts@daf.qgld.gov.au'; 'tony.bradshaw@ehp.qgld.gov.au'; 'MCKAY Adri
Cc: 'Virginia Berry'; Pearce, Vicki MS 1; Huck, Josephine MS; 'Lee, France £
'Derham, Stuart'; 'Mitchell, Fran'

Subject: Oakey HHRA | revised QLD gov review times [SEC=UNCLASSI

y@health.gld.gov.au’;

ey)'; 'Archer, Michael 1.";

UNCLASSIFIED

Hi all,

Thanks very much for your time last Monday at the workshop Jodisctigs the Queensland Government comments on the

Draft Oakey Human Health Risk Assessment.
We indicated at the workshop that the next veor addressing your comments would be provided back to
you by lunch time tomorrow (23 August) and¢hé& would Teguire any feedback by lunch time Wednesday (24 August).

We will not be in a position to provide you with theext version of the report as planned.

| will be able to indicate a revised ti N, but wanted to flag this delay with you as soon as possible.
Many thanks,
Renee

grams
BP3-2-B021
Brindabella Circuit

Brindabella Business Park
PO Box 7925 Canberra BC 2610

Renee Harvey
Contractor to Defence
Environmental Remedia
De fence
M:
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IMPORTANT: This email remains the property of the Department of Defence and is subject to the jurisdiction of section 70
of the Crimes Act 1914. If you have received this email in error, you are requested to contact the sender and delete the
email.

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

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended afithor at the time and it
is not to be distributed without the author's consent. Unless otherwise state e Queensland accepts no
liability for the contents of this email except where subsequently confi iting. The opinions expressed
in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the e State of Queensland. This
email is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege AT eceived this email in error,
please notify the author and delete this message immediately
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Myra Thompson

From: Sophie Dwyer

Sent: Monday, 20 June 2016 5:06 PM
To: CONNOR Andrew

Cc: oakey-idc

Subject: Blood tests para

Andrew

Suggested para re Blood tests

The Prime Minister recently announced a $55 million funding package in relatip Juorinated chemicals
(PFC) contamination at Department of Defence (Defence) sites throughout ta_and the Federal
Opposition has reportedly pledged $21 million to establish a national tas coordinate state and federal
government investigations into the contamination. Both announcements provisions for voluntary
blood testing. Work is being undertaken at a national level, through ¢r evelop a risk assessment tool

to ensure blood testing, if offered, is only carried out on individualy ¢xg potentially contaminated sites.
If blood testing is offered, the funding of testing must be sufficient t6 p de for pre- and post-test counselling
in addition to the blood test.

Regards @

Sophie

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the Tels bite yetwork.

N
&
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Myra Thompson

From: oakey-idc

Sent: Friday, 28 August 2015 2:58 PM

To: Tony.Bradshaw@ehp.qld.gov.au

Subject: Action item from 22 July Oakey Interagency Group

HI Tony,

Next week we are having another Oakey Interagency Group meeting. | know you are currently but when

you return, would you mind dropping me a quick email to let me know if the below action item is completed?

[

Send document ‘Managing Firefighting Foam Policy’ to Queensland DEHP w
aw

Health to ensure messages are consistent. Tony Br
L“@

Kind Regards,

Peta Mason

A/Administration Officer,

Health Protection Branch | Office of the Chief Health Officer and [ évention Division

Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

t. 07 3328 9205

e. peta.mason2@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.ggf/auy

.3 Customers First .ﬁldra % into action QHHLE 0 / E = Q_J..I E'E'ﬂE[BI'Id

" Government
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Myra Thompson

From: oakey-idc

Sent: Wednesday, 22 June 2016 2:42 PM

To: Penny Hutchinson

Cc: oakey-idc; Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxley

Subject: RE: Has Defence approached you regarding Senator Marise Payne visit tomorrow?

Thanks Penny,

Peta

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Wednesday, 22 June 2016 2:41 PM

To: oakey-idc; John Hall

Subject: RE: Has Defence approached you regarding Senator Marise Payne visi OrrOW?
Hi Peta

No | haven’t heard anything.

Regards

Penny

From: oakey-idc @
Sent: Wednesday, 22 June 2016 1:55 PM

To: John Hall; Penny Hutchinson

Cc: oakey-idc
Subject: Has Defence approached you regarding Senatq

ayne visit tomorrow?
Dear Penny and John,

| am sure you are aware that the Federal Minister Tdr Defence, the Honourable Marise Payne, will be visiting the Oakey

area tomorrow to talk to residents regarding PFAS.

The Minister’s office has asked us ind

hether you have been approached by Defence regarding this visit.

Kind regards,
Peta

Peta Mason
Senior Program Officer
Office of the Executive Dires
Health Protection Branch | Prexghtion Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government
Level 3, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston QLD 4006

Postal address:
PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley BC QLD 4006

t. (07) 3328 9205
e. peta.mason2@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

£K Ain
DOH-DL 16/1.7-042xr page o s
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HBM | values for Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) und Perfluorooctanesulfonic

acid (PFOS) in blood plasma
Statement of the German Human Biomonitoring Commission (HBM Commission)

Based on an assessment of the literature on animal and human epidemiological studies which it
discussed during its last meeting in may 2016, and following clarification of a few open details, the
HBM Commission has decided to set HBM | values for PFOA and PFOS in blood plasma of 2 ng
PFOA/ml and 5 ng PFOS/ml.

Rationale:

The HBM | value represents the concentration of a substance in a body matriy
according to the Commission’s current assessment, adverse health effects ar
therefore, no exposure reduction measures are necessary [1].

According to the policy paper on the derivation of HBM values by the ission [1], different
methods can be used for derivation. The method chosen here was-dexj the basis of human
data and critical effects.

Following evaluation of human epidemiological studies (status: May 2016), the
Commission rates effects in the following areas as well py0 é , and significantly associated
with exposure to PFOA and/or PFOS:

1. Fertility and pregnancy

e Time to wanted pregnancy

e Waiting period for pregnancies > 1 yes

e Gestosis and gestational diabete
2. Weight of newborns at birth
3. Lipid metabolism
4. Immunity after vaccination, immv
5. Hormonal development, age at pubé
6. Thyroid metabolism
7. Onset of menopause

jical development
enarche

t of current literature, PODs (points of departure) were derived for the
rts different quantile contrasts, BMD (benchmark dose) derivations
or regression 2 for continuous endpoints (e.g. birth weights, fat metabolism, sex hormones).
the HBM Commission has chosen the upper bounds of the quantiles
¢ffects (with a monotonic relationship). This is in line with the approach of the

g a level of protection at which “adverse health effects are not expected”. BMD
modelling usually |eads to lower PODs, but cannot be carried out consistently with the available data.

The Commission points out that the sample sizes and concentration ranges reported in different
studies, and the chosen quantiles and confounders cannot be evaluated using a standard procedure.

The Commission has therefore decided to use the resulting POD ranges as a basis for deriving the
HBM | value. The expert opinion which it has on hand suggests a possible POD in the range of 1 to
10 ng/ml blood plasma for PFOA and of 1 to 15 ng/ml blood plasma for PFOS. Within these value
ranges, the HBM Commission has set the HBM | value at 2 ng PFOA/ml blood plasma and

5 ng PFOS/ml blood plasma.

DOH-DL 16/17-042r page ro. 10



The consistency of results from animal and epidemiological studies was taken into account in the
derivation.

Animal studies support the above line of reasoning in two respects:

1. Analogies between animal and epidemiological studies enhance the plausibility that
the effects chosen as endpoints are relevant (e.g. humoral immunity, birth weight,
(puberty) development)

2. Recent animal studies have also found effects in the low-dose range.

The pathomechanisms involved currently do not seem to be sufficiently clarified to provide a logical
explanation of the effects observed.

The data available do not appear to show proof of a genotoxicity of PFOA an

1. Kommission HBM (2014a) Grundsatzpapier zur Ableitung von
Bundesgesundheitsbl Gesundheitsforsch Gesundheitssch (2):
https://www.umweltbundesamt.de/sites/defauIt/files/m

s00103-013-1867-2-2.pdf \)
http://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s00103-013=$867

enten.
47
okumente/art 10.1007

N
&
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From: HProtSD_dchocorro

To: CHO CHO
Subject: RE: Urgent Phone Message: Please ring Dr lan Gardner from the Department of Defence in Canberra - 0419 236 228
Date: Friday, 1 May 2015 9:50:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
Hi Jess

I have spoken with Greg Jackson and he said that Penny Hutchinson, Darling Downs Public Health Unit, is
the best person to return his call. Can you please forward the request to Penny.

If Penny isn’t available then Greg will call Dr Gardner and give the best advice he can.

Cheers
Myra

From: CHO CHO

Sent: Friday, 1 May 2015 9:34 AM
To: HProtSD_dchocorro

Subject: Urgent Phone Message: Please ring Dr lan Gardner from
0419 236 228

t of Defence in Canberra -

RS

Hi Myra,
We have received a call from Dr lan Gardner from t

He rang to speak with Dr Young however Dr Young i
this through for Sophie or if anyone else is best to é )

al gontamination in ground water and subsequent

ring\im back.

It is in regards to a situation in Oakey regarding
testing.

Can someone please ring him urgenty &

Many thanks,
Jess

Correspondence Team
Chief Health Officer Brangh fNHealth Services and Clinical Innovation
Department of Health | Queensland Bqvernment

Level 7, 147-163 Chatlette Street

Phone:
Crystella: 3227 6617

Vanessa: 3234 0965
Tracey: 3239 0865 (Thursday & Friday)
Jess: 3008 7386

Always upload new Corporate templates from QHEPS: http://gheps.health.ald.gov.au/corro-templates/home.htm

HSCI Divisional template from QHEPS: http://aheps.health.qld.gov.au/hsci/templates.htm

B B B
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Janet Cumming

From: Peter Boland

Sent: Wednesday, 26 August 2015 9:47 AM

To: Penny Hutchinson; Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxley; Janet Cumming; Greg Jackson
Subject: RE: Feedback from last night's meeting

Hi,

My only other comment is that the community appears to be getting frustrated at how long the process is
taking. They highlighted that a number of the health questions were first raised over a year ago with no adequate
response/answer to date.

Thanks,
Peter.

Peter Boland
Manager Environmental Health | Darling Downs Public Health Unit
Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service

Ground Floor, Browne House @
Baillie Henderson Hospital

Cnr Tor & Hogg Street

PO Box 405 @
TOOWOOMBA QLD 4350
P: 07 4699 8252 | F: 07 4699 8477
M:

E: Peter.Boland@health.gld.gov.au

Web: http://www.heath.qd.qov.au/darinqd@
From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Wednesday, 26 August 2015 9 M

To: Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxlgy/ Jan ming; Greg Jackson

Cc: Peter Boland
Subject: Feedback from last eeting

Hi all,

Interesting meeting las
exposure is through d€
retired GP and all stated
were raised that Defence tookQn notice as no defence doctors were present.

Helen Blain was at the meeting spoke to me afterwards. She advised that the result of the latest blood tests would
be released at the beginning of September and was asking if QH would have access to the de-identified data. She
also mentioned having another community meeting to discuss the blood results and had a vision of having booths
with Doctors who could then discuss a residents result with them.

ght. JHealth was a big concern and the community are not buying the line that the only

| think we will need a communication channel for residents but am cautious of following the lines of the CSG with
13HEALTH perhaps we need to get DoD to set something up with our assistance.

Peter, do you have anything you would like to add?

Regards

DOH-DL 16/17-042: rege o 14



Penny

Dr Penny Hutchinson
Public Health Physician and Director| Darling Downs Public Health Unit
Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service

Darling Downs Public Health Unit
Ground Floor

Browne House

Baillie Henderson Hospital

Cnr of Tor & Hogg St
Toowoomba QLD 4350

P: 07 46998240 | F: 07 46998262
E: penny.hutchinson@health.qgld.gov.au

Web: hitp://www.health.gld.gov.au/darlingdowns/

@
77
&
@
A
&
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Janet Cumming

From: Peter Boland

Sent: Wednesday, 13 May 2015 9:12 AM

To: Janet Cumming

Subject: FW: Briefing Notes - Army Aviation Centre Oakey
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

HiJanet,

Please find below my briefing notes from our meeting with Defence last week.
Thanks,

Peter.

Peter Boland

Manager Environmental Health | Darling Downs Public Health Unit

Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service @

Ground Floor, Browne House
Baillie Henderson Hospital

Cnr Tor & Hogg Street @
PO Box 405
TOOWOOMBA QLD 4350

P: 07 4699 8252 | F: 07 4699 8477
M: 0417 791 607

E: Peter.Boland@health.qgld.gov.au
Web: http://www.health.qgld.gov.au/darling @

From: Peter Boland

Sent: Tuesday, 12 May 2015 8:23 AM

To: DDHHS

Cc: Hwee Sin Chong; Penny HUtc
Aviati

Subject: Briefing Notes - Ar ntre Oakey

Hi,
Please find below some hateg from Friday’s meeting, for the CHO brief.
On 8 May 2015, Dr lan Gardiner, Senior Physician in OEM, Department of Defence (DoD), provided a briefing to the
DDHHS in relation to a perfluorooctane sulphonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanic acid (PFOA) Blood Testing Program
that is being conducted in Oakey.
Background

e The DoD is currently investigating the contamination of groundwater by the Army Aviation Centre Oakey

(AACO) through the use of fire fighting foams containing PFOS and PFOA. These foams were used at the
AACO between 1970 and 2005. The DoD no longer uses fire fighting foams containing these chemicals.

DOH-DL 16/1.7-042: ragero. s



® |n 2010 PFOS and PFOA were detected by groundwater monitoring on base. The impacted aquifer is
approximately 20m deep.

® |n 2012 the first of four community consultation sessions was held by the DoD.

e Subsequent testing has identified a plume of contamination spreading to the south west of the base (see
attachments).

e The DoD has issued precautionary advice to the impacted landholders to not use bore water for drinking
purposes.

Blood Testing Program

e Concerned residents have approached a local GP for advice on health effects from exposure to the
contaminated water.

e Although he has advised the residents that the risks were minimal, he agreed to conduct a screening
program to reassure people.

® The program received UQ Ethics Committee approval.

e Samples were collected through Sullivan and Nicolaides Pathology (
eGP contacted DoD to seek funding/payment of analyst fees.
e DoD has agreed to fund up to 100 tests.

e Contractual issues delayed the commencement of the progran ine months.

a veleased to GP in late April without

the knowledge of the DoD. These test results showed significantlyeléyated levels of PFOS in 10 of 11
people, when compared to previously reported backgr irrAustralian studies. These results are
well below occupational exposure levels.

e Testing will be offered to two other groups (Shi ye
original group.

e SNP will contact people to arrange testing.

e Samples to be analysed by EnTOX in one batc

e SNP will provide results to individuals.

® The DoD will provide a document to AXP, ch will be included with the results, to aid people in
interpreting the results. Advice will Ke givép aritact your GP should further information be required. The
DoD will brief GPs prior to the releaseofthe results.

e Results are expected in late June.

and DoD direct contacts) along with the

Thanks,
Peter.

Peter Boland
Manager Environmeits
Darling Downs Hospita

ing Downs Public Health Unit

Health Service

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

From: Janet Cumming

Sent: Tuesday, 26 May 2015 2:26 PM

To: HProtSD_dchocorro; Sophie Dwyer; Greg Jackson; Penny Hutchinson; Peter Boland;
Suzanne Huxley; Rebecca Richardson

Subject: FW: 20150423 - Department Information Session Minutes - DNRM, DAF & Safe Food
QLD [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: DERP - EHP - Oakey Status - Minutes - 23 Apr 15.pdf

FYl. More minutes from Mark O’Connell
From: O'Connell, Mark MR 2 [mailto:mark.oconnell2@defence.gov.au]
Sent: Tuesday, 26 May 2015 2:20 PM

To: Janet Cumming
Subject: Fw: 20150423 - Department Information Session Minutes - DNRM, D ood QLD
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Classification: Unclassified @

Janet

EHP attached, any questions please let me know.

Regards \
Mark O'Connell

Base Support Manager - Darling Downs

Defence Support and Reform Group

Swartz Barracks Oakey

Tel: (07)45777100

Mob: 0419742984

Email: mark.oconnell2@defence.gov.ay

IMPORTANT: This email remains t
70 of the Crimes Act 1914. If yo
the email.

brop f the Department of Defence and is subject to the jurisdiction of section
receive is email in error, you are requested to contact the sender and delete

From: Callinan, Scott
Sent: Tuesday, May 26,
To: O'Connell, Mark MR 2
Subject: RE: 20150423 - Depa
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

ent Information Session Minutes - DNRM, DAF & Safe Food QLD

UNCLASSIFIED

cheers

From: O'Connell, Mark MR 2
Sent: Tuesday, 26 May 2015 13:21
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To: Callinan, Scott MR 1
Subject: Re: 20150423 - Department Information Session Minutes - DNRM, DAF & Safe Food QLD
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Classification: Unclassified

Scott
Do you also have the EHP minutes please?

Mark O'Connell

Base Support Manager - Darling Downs
Defence Support and Reform Group
Swartz Barracks Oakey

Tel: (07)45777100

Mob: 0419742984

Email: mark.oconnell2@defence.gov.au

IMPORTANT: This email remains the property of the Department of Defence afd'is ct to the jurisdiction of section
70 of the Crimes Act 1914. If you have received this email in error, you are req d td ¢gontact the sender and delete

the email. @
From: Callinan, Scott MR 1

Sent: Monday, May 25, 2015 04:31 PM

To: O'Connell, Mark MR 2

Subject: 20150423 - Department Information Session Minutes RM, DAF & Safe Food QLD [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED @

Hi Mark
As requested.

cheers
Seotst Conltlinan

ADDERP
02 6266 8076

IMPORTANT: This email r
of the Crimes Act 1914. |
email.

iRs the propepty of the Department of Defence and is subject to the jurisdiction of section 70
e received this email in error, you are requested to contact the sender and delete the

IMPORTANT: This email r
of the Crimes Act 1914. If you
email.

iQs the property of the Department of Defence and is subject to the jurisdiction of section 70
received this email in error, you are requested to contact the sender and delete the
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Oakey Interagency Group

Queensland Health

Minutes

Date/Time: 2 September 2015, 2:00pm to 3:30pm
Venue: Conference Room, 3.1 Level 3, 15 Butterfield St, Herston
Attendees: Queensland Health

Sophie Dwyer (Chair), Health Protection Unit

Uma Rajappa, Environmental Hazards

Dr Janet Cumming, Water Quality Unit

Dr Suzanne Huxley, Health Protection Unit

Dr Greg Jackson, Water Quality Unit

Dr Penny Hutchinson, Darling Downs Public Health Unit
Peter Boland, Public Health Unit — Toowoomba

Department of Agriculture and Fisheries

Dick Watt, Plant Biosecurity and Product Integrity
Stephen Potts, Agricultural Resources and Planning
Ross Savage, Agricultural Resources and Planning
Jan Paff, Agricultural Resources and Planning

Department of Environment and Heritage Prg
Kelly Gleeson, Environmental Services
David Cook, Technical Support and Commun pdnse

Department of Natural Resources an S
Jason Chavasse, Water Services

Department of the Premier and Ca t@
Louise Mahoney, Social Poli

Department of Science,
Susie Vardy, Water Quatit

Safe Food Production Queenshagn
Brian Witherspoquq, ger Engagement

Apologies: y\\ N

Y
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1. Welcome and Apologies

Queensland Health has invited interagency group members to discuss forthcoming release of blood
test results.

2. Current status of incident

e Shine Lawyers has been engaged by thirty seven people with respect to the Oakey PFOS
contamination.

e QId government is still awaiting a response from DoD to Scope of veloped by the
Queensland Government interagency group in relation to Oakey.

o Results of blood tests are now expected to be released in thewegek ng 7 September 2015.
The group has not received a copy of the letter DoD is plannifig d with results.

o Dr Matthew Klein and Mark O’Connell presented the briefing
Centre. Peter Boland from DDPHU was present.

loc Ps at the Oakey Medical

o General impression was DoD were downplaylivig risks associated with PFOS and
PFOA. DoD based health risk assessme S ation provided in the ATSDR
(Agency for Toxic Substances and Disg3 f8try) toxicological profile.

o DoD stated that elevated PFCs
minor rise in cholesterol”.

o Local GPs were interested to
class 2B (possibly carcinogeni
is comparable to othepChemj

and possibility of contamination of fish in the creek.

s in the audience suggested that by “not knocking concerns on the

and Health attendees advised that community anxiety levels were higher than in
meetings. The community is concerned about inconsistency of DoD health risk
dge. At the first meeting DoD described Oakey contamination as the “new asbestos”
uore recently DoD appears to be significantly downplaying health risk.

o Also concern as some community members with elevated levels claim to not have
consumed contaminated bore water.

o A nurse from Oakey Hospital has been agitating for further testing.

o Alocal dairy farmer was present and was concerned his business would be targeted for
audit by Safe Food Queensland.

o Members of the community recalled DoD has said in the past they would test the plants
and environment.

° s.73 - irrelevant

Minutes 2 September 2015
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s.73 - irrelevant

e EHP is awaiting advice on DoD obligations on Crown land located in Queensland. As a minimum,
it is expected Queensland Government will have jurisdiction in relation to pollution which flows from
Crown land on to Queensland land.

e The group agreed responsibility for contamination and remediation lies with DoD but that
Queensland Government will need to be prepared should DoD not meet obligations. May bring in
communication expertise later in process.

e QH has prepared a letter from the Queensland Premier to the Pri ter requesting a briefing
on the environmental investigations at the Army Aviation Centre a .{DPC advised that a
briefing was to occur between DoD and the DGs of DPC and DoH.
/7
3. No. Action Agenc@ Responsible Person
N [

1. Define proactive actions required to e d Brian Witherspoon

safeguard future of beef industry D
Ross Savage
[y

2. DPC is to compile a document summarisi &v/ Il ddencies
each QId government agency’s
requirements and regulatory tools th miers Louise Mahoney
could be used for this issue. >
Once all input collected, comple
information to be made availabl ID
members. /o

3. QH to prepare holding/Statement | Queensland Greg Jackson
preparation for bloo re se. Health

4. Identification of all stakeholders V

» Safe Food Preduction Queensland
* Worksafe Queensland

e Entox

* Toowoomba Regional Council

* Other Commonwealth agencies

3. Governance

e All email correspondence for the IDC is to be sent or cc'd to oakey-idc@health.qgld.gov.au

6. Next Meeting
To be advised

Minutes 2 September 2015
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N Australian Government

5
“ Department of Defence
Estate and Infrastructure Group

MEETING AGENDA

Project Name: Army Aviation Centre Oakey (AACO) Human Health Risk Assessment Methodology

Review

Date of Meeting: 15 June 2016 (3-4 pm) Location: Meeting Room 2, Level 7, 143-167

Charlotte Street Brisbane and
Telephone Conference

Minutes Prepared By: Golder

Purpose of Meeting P
S,
t

Meeting to discuss comments from the QLD Department of Health on the Human Hea essment
Methodology report (AECOM, 18 May 2016). Defence will also take the opportunity to Department of

Health on the overall status of the human health risk assessment.

Department of Health’s comments are attached to the end of this agenda.

Dial in details as follows
Call in number: 1800 062 923
Account Number: 74198444 8628

—
Name Position/Organisation O Name Position/Organisation
Vicki Pearce Defence Andrew Kolrusch Technical Advisor / GHD
Renee Harvey Defence Andrew Pawlisz Technical Advisor / GHD
Josie Huck Defence Virginia Berry QLD DPC
Paul McCabe Lead Consultant / AECOM Sophie Dwyer QLD Health
Frances Lee Lead Consultant / AECOM Suzanne Huxley QLD Health
Michael Archer Lead Consultant / AECOM Janet Cummings QLD Health
Roger Drew Lead Consultant Subcontracto QxConsult Stephen Potts QLD DAF
Fran Mitchell Project Manager/Cpqtract Administratgr / Golder Associates Adrian McKay QLD DNRM
Stuart Derham Project Manag ontgast Administrator / Golder Associates
Apologies
Item | Descriptio Dis n Actions
1.0 Defence in W eeting (Renee Harvey)

human health risk assessment
e Key upcoming repdwt review dates

e Process for communicating comments, responses and report updates to Department of Health

2.0 AECOM respond to Department of Health’s comments on Human Health Risk Assessment
Methodology report (AECOM, 18 May 2016) (Michael Archer)
[refer below comments from Department of Health's attached to agenda]

3.0 | AECOM provide an update on proposed amendment to Human Health Risk Assessment
Methodology

4.0 Defence close meeting (Renee Harvey)

D@=‘ |_ =@4%TI Page No. 27

Page 1 of 3




V2 Australian Government
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**  Department of Defence MEETING AGENDA
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

Queensland Health comments on the Oakey human health risk assessment methodology
document

27 May 2016
Section 2 of the PHHRAM states “health advisory levels adopted
adopted to facilitate preliminary decision making with regard to paota
AECOM will be aware that USEPA has revised its drinking
account lifetime exposure? Will AECOM use the prev
alternative?

the AECOM (2016) Biota Sampling, Analysis an
HHRA upon completion of the works and confirmati
investigations”
Will this data be available in time for the pletion of the HHRA, or will there be an
amendment at a later date?

an
at the data meet the DQOS for the

Section 3.5 Vapour Pathway Cons{d¢ [hig section outlines various sources on the low
vapour pressure of PFOS to justify notincfuding inhalation of vapour phase PFOS in the risk
assessment. A USEPA report (which appears to be no longer available) is cited as evidence that
inhalation of PFOA contamin water front showering or bathing is not a significant exposure

pathway.
However, the rec ublica at USEPA state:
“‘PFOS has a lo ressure and is not expected to be present in air except as bound
to particulate matter a rosols formed from devices such as shower heads and
humidifiers erosolizeNap water.” (our italics)
“PFOA hag apor pressure and is not expected to be present in air except as bound
to particdla a0 in aerosols formed from devices such as shower heads and

humidifiers™tQaf aerosolize tap water.” (our italics)

As inhalation cagpe a significant pathway, due to uptake directly to the blood, QH believes
that inhalation of liquid aerosols containing PFOS, PFOA and PFHxS should be considered
in the risk assessment.

Section 5.2 states: “The identified CoPC will be assessed as threshold chemicals, as a potential
for genotoxic carcinogenic mode of action has not been confirmed.”
Again, the recent USEPA publications state:
“Under EPA’s Guidelines for Carcinogen Risk Assessment (USEPA 2005a) there is
Suggestive Evidence of Carcinogenic Potential of PFOS in humans based on the liver and
thyroid adenomas observed in the chronic rat bioassay (Thomford 2002). The data lack a
dose-responsive relationship; thus, they were not used quantitatively in the derivation of a
cancer slope factor.”

DQ: =@4%TI Page No. 28 Page 2 of 3
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' Department of Defence MEETING AGENDA
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

“Under EPA’s Guidelines for Carcinogen Risk Assessment (USEPA 2005) there is
Suggestlve Ewdence of Carcmogemc Potentlal of PFOA in humans. The bloassay findings

as the exposure duration). “The average and 95th percentil
from the 2001-2006 HILDA survey data are approximately

or Reference Concentration
Could AECOM expl

DQ: =@4%TI Page No. 29 Page 3 of 3



Suzanne Huxley

From: Derham, Stuart <SDerham@golder.com.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 14 June 2016 3:44 PM
To: vicki.pearcel@defence.gov.au; Huck, Josephine MISS; Harvey, Renee MS; Mitchell,

Fran; McCabe, Paul; Archer, Michael J,; Frances.Lee@aecom.com; 'Andrew Kohlrusch
(Andrew.Kohlrusch@ghd.com)'; Roger Drew; Virginia.Berry@premiers.qld.gov.au;
Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxley; Pawlisz, Andrzej; Janet Cumming; POTTS Stephen;
MCKAY Adrian (Adrian.Mckay@dnrm.gld.gov.au)

Subject: Army Aviation Centre Oakey - Stage 2C Environmental Investigation - QLD
government feedback on HHRAM
Attachments: 20160614- HHRAM Agenda.pdf

Hi All,

Please find attached agenda for tomorrow’s meeting to discuss comments from_th
Human Health Risk Assessment Methodology report.

ment of Health on the

Regards,

Stuart Derham (BEnvSc (Hons), CEnvP0589, MEIANZ) | Senior Environmental Scientist | Golder Associates Pty
Ltd

147 Coronation Drive, Milton, Queensland 4064, Australia (PO 4, Milton BC, QLD 4064)
T: +61 7 3721 5400 | D: +61 7 3721 5406 | F: +61 7 3721 5401 61 | E: SDerham@golder.com.au

Work Safe, Home Safe

&
S
&

| www.golder.com
Winner of 22 BRW Client Choice Awards @

limitations
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Myra Thompson

From: AUBNE1 - Defence Oakey <Defence.Oakey@aecom.com>

Sent: Friday, 7 August 2015 5:11 PM

To: DON Oakey

Cc: Sophie Dwyer

Subject: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation

Attachments: 20150807_0Oakey Hospital.pdf

Dear Lois,

Please find letter attached in response to your recent enquiry about the blood testing progra ing undertaken by Defence as

part of the Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation.

As detailed in the letter, enquiries from the Hospital about the Investigation should be directe
Dwyer is copied on this email).

Community members can direct general enquiries about the Investigation to the pro ormation hotline on 1800 136 129 or
email defence.oakey.anz@aecom.com.

Regards,

Defence Oakey Project Team i
P: 1800 136 129

E: Defence.Oakey@aecom.com

W: www.defence.gov.au/id/Oakey

N
&
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by - i Australian Government Mark O’Connell
SSeee Base Support Manager Darling Downs
Department of Defence Department of Defence
Estate and Infrastructure Group B45 Orr Road
Oakey, QLD 4401
&: (07) 4577 7100
£ mark.oconnell2@defence.gov.au

7 August 2015

Ms Lois Cobon
Director of Nursing

Oakey Hospital

Oakey QLD 4401

Dear Ms Cobon

The Department of Defence is writing in response to your enquiry rega the/Blood testing
being undertaken by Defence as part of the Army Aviation Centre ey ) Environmental

Investigation Project.

Defence acknowledges your advice in relation to a concerns
staff about potential exposure to Perflurooctane Sulphate (
(PFOA) through past use of bore water at the Hospital and thaf
interest in having their blood tested.

ing.ex ed by some of your
Perflurooctanoic Acid

Ms Sophie Dwyer from Queensland Health h
be directed through Queensland Health in the fir
established an interdepartmental working grou S
and other related concerns arising out of the I

Vis at afl/queries from the hospital should

he Queensland Government has
addressing and responding to health
igation.

Defence is undertaking preliminary g
Defence understands the main expg
The testing is focused on a samplé
regular basis over the last 3 years.

hte testing for up to 100 serum samples.
way for PFOS and PFOA is direct oral ingestion.
s-who have drunk contaminated bore water on a

The representative sample is made up of Oakey residents who have:

1. lived within th ntaminatiegdetection area; and
2. had bores te indicate elevated levels of either PFOS or PFOA; and
3. been drinking n a regular basis over the last 3 years.

The testing is pea nmpletion. However if staff at the Hospital meet the above criteria in a
private capacity a questions, they should contact the project team on 1800 136 129 or
email defence.oakeysanz@aecom.com for further information.

For anyone interested in further information about the AACO Groundwater Investigation Project,
please visit the project website at: www.defence.gov.au/id/Oakey.

Yours sincerely

Mark O’Connell

Base Support Manager

Defence Estate & Infrastructure
Darling Downs
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Myra Thompson

From: Sophie Dwyer

Sent: Monday, 10 August 2015 4:57 PM

To: Penny Hutchinson; Rebecca Richardson

Cc: oakey-idc

Subject: FW: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation
Attachments: 20150807_0Oakey Hospital.pdf

Fyi

sophie

Sophie Dwyer

Executive Director, Health Protection Branch

Prevention Division, Department of Health| Queensland Governmer
15 Butterfield Steet, QLD (
t. 07 33289266 m. 0412422181

e. sophie.dwyer@health.qld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.a O

.3 Customars frst .ﬁldrasinm action @ pifal NV Jrous @ Empower people Queensland

wernment

From: AUBNE1 - Defence Oa [Maitq: Defence.Oakey@aecom.com]

Sent: Friday, 7 August 2015 5:11 PM
To: DON Oakey

Cc: Sophie Dwyer
Subject: Army Aviatic!

Fnvironmental Investigation

Dear Lois,

Please find letter attached in response to your recent enquiry about the blood testing program being undertaken by Defence as
part of the Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation.

As detailed in the letter, enquiries from the Hospital about the Investigation should be directed to Queensland Health (Sophie
Dwyer is copied on this email).

Community members can direct general enquiries about the Investigation to the project information hotline on 1800 136 129 or
email defence.oakey.anz@aecom.com.

Regards,

Defence Oakey Project Team

DOH-DL 16/17-042 1 pagero.s
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

To: AUBNE1 - Defence Oakey

Subject: RE: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation

Thanks for the advice
regards

Sophie Dwyer

Executive Director, Health Protection Branch

Prevention Division, Department of Health| Queensland Government
15 Butterfield Steet, QLD

t. 07 33289266 m. 0412422181

e. sophie.dwyer@health.qld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au @

Customers first Ideas into action Unteash potential 3 S Empower peaple j ? Queensland
£

Government

To: DON Oakey
Cc: Sophie Dwyer
Subject: Army Aviation Cg

Dear Lois,

Please find letter attached in*xgSponse to your recent enquiry about the blood testing program being undertaken by Defence as
part of the Army Aviation CentreXQakey Environmental Investigation.

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

From: Katie Panaretto

Sent: Tuesday, 13 September 2016 3:20 PM

To: Roger Drew

Cc: Penny Hutchinson; Sophie Dwyer; joanne@ddwmphn.com.au

Subject: RE: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation Project : Department of

Defence - meeting in Toowoomba

Thanks for that Roger. We will confer with the Primary Health Network and we will get back to you
Regards
Katie Panaretto

From: Roger Drew [mailto:rogerdrew@toxconsult.com.au]

Sent: Tuesday, 13 September 2016 9:10 AM

To: Katie Panaretto

Cc: Penny Hutchinson; Sophie Dwyer; joanne@ddwmphn.com.au
Subject: RE: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation P
Toowoomba

ment of Defence - meeting in

Hello Katie,

Thank you for the contact.

| am back in the office Thurs 13" Oct so anytime of the
catch up with stuff) or the week after is OK.

| currently have nothing on that can’t be rearranged for t

Please advise what format you would like, e.g. k
with GPs.

While | am away | will have access to emalil, although.\not necessarily on a daily basis.
Regards Roger

Roger Drew, PhD, DABT, FAC
Toxicologist & Risk Assessor

ansult Mtd Ph: +61 3 9572 1448
ox 316 Fax: +81 3 8583 5330
guth, Vic, 3145 Mobile: 461 412 108 394

ToxConsu

TOXICOLOGY CONSUL

Aqiunct Associate Professor
By Epidemiology & Preventative Medicine
Manash University

From: Katie Panaretto [mailto:Katie.Panaretto@health.gld.gov.au]

Sent: Monday, 12 September 2016 12:06 PM

To: rogerdrew@toxconsult.com.au

Cc: Penny Hutchinson; Sophie Dwyer; joanne@ddwmphn.com.au

Subject: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation Project : Department of Defence - meeting in
Toowoomba

Roger

DOH-DL 16/17-042 1 pagero.s



| work with Penny Hutchinson at the Darling Downs PHU.

We are hoping you might be able to come up to Toowoomba to provide local GPs with information as background to
the blood testing of residents in Oakey as part of the Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation
Project. This will enable them to give more informed information to their patients about testing and their levels once
the results come back.

| understand you are away overseas for about a month, so will not be able to come up till mid to late October

Would you have time this week to perhaps nominate a couple dates that you could come up so that we lock down a
date?

Thanks for your help

Katie Panaretto

Dr Kathryn Panaretto

Locum Population Health Physician

Darling Downs Public Health Unit

Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service

Browne House

Baillee Henderson Hospital
Cnr Hogg & Tor Streets
Toowoomba QLD 4350

P: 07 46998253 M:

skesfeskokok sfesfeskokoiskokok

of this email is also prohibited.

ail does not contain malicious software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the
n to services, loss of information, harm or is infected with a virus, other malicious computer programme

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable g
consequences if any person's computer inadvertg
or code that may occur as a consequence of r¢

Unless stated otherwise, this email reprt he sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.
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Myra Thompson

From: Sophie Dwyer

Sent: Wednesday, 25 November 2015 9:28 AM

To: Louise Mahoney; Christine Castley; Jeannette Young; Penny Hutchinson; Peter Boland
Subject: RE: Assistant Minister for Defence, the Hon Darren Chester MP attendance at Public

Forum - Update on Contamination at Oakey - Oakey RSL - 0800h to 1000h - FRIDAY, 4
DECEMBER 2015. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Dear all
Given the media coverage of the proposed event next week, when we meet with Defence on Friday | think it will be

important we discuss how health issues will be handled at that public meeting. At this here is no plan to have a
medical presence at the meeting. Of course, it will be good that Peter, you are there ughould not be expected to
answer community concerns regarding health risk.

regards

Sophie Dwyer PSM
Executive Director, Health Protection Branch
Prevention Division, Department of Health| Queensland Go@

15 Butterfield Stee
t. 07 33289266 m.
e. sophie.dwyer@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gow

i .

=4 Be courageous @ Empower people

" Government

From: Louise Mahoney [mailto: e.Mahon premiers.qgld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 25 Novem 142 AM

- , the Hon Darren Chester MP attendance at Public Forum - Update on
RSL - 0800h to 1000h - FRIDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2015. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

http://readnow.isentia.com/articlepresenter.aspx?guid=be77e83a-f5c2-4d23-81d9-
a8ebfaelb1f6&serid=69340&ArticlelD=502543422&output=txt&serid=69340

From: Louise Mahoney

Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2015 6:26 PM

To: 'Peios, Stephen MR' <stephen.peios@defence.gov.au>

Cc: Christine Castley <Christine.Castley@premiers.qld.gov.au>; Jeannette Young (Queensland Heath)
<Jeannette.Young@health.qld.gov.au>; Sophie Dwyer <Sophie.Dwyer@health.qgld.gov.au>; Penny Hutchinson
<Penny.Hutchinson@health.qld.gov.au>; 'Peter.Boland@health.qld.gov.au' <Peter.Boland@health.gld.gov.au>

DOH-DL 16/17-042 1 pagero.«




Subject: RE: Assistant Minister for Defence, the Hon Darren Chester MP attendance at Public Forum - Update on
Contamination at Oakey - Oakey RSL - 0800h to 1000h - FRIDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2015. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Steve

I’'ve been advised Peter Boland, Manager, Environmental Health, Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service
(Peter.Boland@health.qld.gov.au) is able to attend in an observer capacity.

Regards
Louise

Louise Mahoney

A/Director

Social Policy

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

TG P 07 3003 9353
Queensland Executive Building, Level 14, 100 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Government PO Box 15185, City East, QLD 4002

From: Peios, Stephen MR [mailto:stephen.peios@defence.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 19 November 2015 4:33 PM

To: Louise Mahoney <Louise.Mahoney@premiers.qld.gov.au>
Cc: Greet, Maureen MS 1 <maureen.greetl @defence.gov.a
Subject: Assistant Minister for Defence, the Hon Darren Cheste
Contamination at Oakey - Oakey RSL - 0800h to 1000h - 4

6n MS <alison.clifton@defence.gov.au>
attendance at Public Forum - Update on
EMBER 2015. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED

Good afternoon Louise,

| am writing to advise you of a public unity forumthat is taking place on Friday 4 December 2015 at the Oakey RSL
between 0800h and 1000h.

The Hon lan Macfarlane MP ag/the eral Member for Groom, has invited the Assistant Minister for Defence, the Hon
Darren Chester MP, to attend tHis foru rovide an update to the community on contamination at Oakey. AMINDEF

has accepted.

G

Attendees will include } [aneapd staff; Assistant Minister for Defence Chester and staff; along with
Commonwealth Defence entatives. Dr Mathew Klein will also be attending. The audience will be members of the
public (expected 30-50, room tapacity is 100 max).

The intent is to provide an update to the community on the status of the contamination issue at Oakey, including health
issues.

Noting Dr Klein's attendance and the community presence, we feel it would be positive if a QLD Health representative
could be present at this meeting to assist on the day and discuss any concerns with the Minister and the community.

Can you please advise if this can be arranged.

Thanks
Steve

DOH-DL 16/1.7-042 sage o,



Stephen Peios

Strategic Contamination Management
Environment and Engineering Branch
BP26-2-B070, Department of Defence
CANBERRA ACT 2600

@ Ph:02 6266 8501 | Mobile:
2 stephen.peios@defence.gov.au

IMPORTANT: This email remains the property of the Department of Defence and is subject to the jurisdiction of section 70
of the Crimes Act 1914. If you have received this email in error, you are requested to co e sender and delete the
email.

he adthor at the time and it

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that inte ‘
ate of Queensland accepts no

is not to be distributed without the author's consent. Unless otherwise sta,
liability for the contents of this email except where subsequently confirm ing. The opinions expressed
in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily represent/fhe 4 the State of Queensland. This
email is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal privile -=g y you idve received this email in error,
please notify the author and delete this message immediately ‘
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Myra Thompson

From: Peter Boland

Sent: Friday, 4 December 2015 4:28 PM

To: Louise Mahoney

Cc: Christine Castley; Jeannette Young; Sophie Dwyer; Penny Hutchinson; DDHHS
Subject: RE: Assistant Minister for Defence, the Hon Darren Chester MP attendance at Public

Forum - Update on Contamination at Oakey - Oakey RSL - 0800h to 1000h - FRIDAY, 4
DECEMBER 2015. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Louise,

This morning’s meeting was well attended by the community. | would estimate that & 20 people would have

been present. This is significantly more than previous community meetings.

Vicki Pearce, Director Environmental Remediation Programs, Department of D D), gave a presentation to
provide an overview of the incident and the actions taken by the DoD to d € medying was then opened up to
questions from the floor.

The community openly expressed their anger at the management ofthedn This was largely due to the perceived
inaction by the DoD in addressing the community’s concerns. Int : ofithe community this meeting did not answer
any of the questions raised at the previous community megtipg in\Awgdst. /Joncerns focussed on the following:

e Human health impacts

® Ongoing exposure to PFCs

e Lack of ongoing human blood testing

e Poor treatment of ex DoD personnel

e Animal health (mainly horses)
e Land values including the inability to @o‘ telopls

Numerous people stated that their PFC levels were @kove the national average. They wanted blood testing expanded to
include other family members and ongbi ‘
bloods they also wanted expanded

e Human blood testing4or anyone who requests such a test

e That any health survey(DoD human health assessment) include anyone within the plume, on the fringe of the
plume or who requests inclusion

e Further testing of water, stock and fodder

e Someone from the DoD, based in Canberra, to come to Oakey every fortnight to meet the public and listen to
their concerns.

The Hon Darren Chester MP stated that he would take the following issues to the Minister:
e Mental health support for the community
e Support to address health concerns
e The need to review all types of testing to meet the community’s expectations

DOH-DL 16/17-042 1 pagero. s



e Provision of a point of contact for the community (including the possibility of a community consultative
committee).

The meeting highlighted the extent of anxiety and anger that this issue has caused the community. They are seeking
definitive answers to their questions. Things have become very emotive due to the perceived lack of action to address
their concerns.

At this stage the anger is directed towards the DoD. To their credit, | thought that the DoD representatives handled
themselves well during the meeting.

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

M: 0417 791 607 @
E: Peter.Boland@health.qgld.gov.au
Web: http://www.health.gld.gov.au/darlingdowns/ @

From: Louise Mahoney [mailto:Louise.Mahoné
Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2015 6:26 PM
To: Peios, Stephen MR

Cc: Christine Castley; Jeannette Young;
Subject: RE: Assistant Minister for
Contamination at Oakey - Oakey

the Hon Darren Chester MP attendance at Public Forum - Update on
0 1000h - FRIDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2015. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Steve

I’'ve been advised Peter m anager, Environmental Health, Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service
(Peter.Boland@health 4)d.gov i le to attend in an observer capacity.

Regards
Louise

Louise Mahoney

A/Director

Social Policy

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

P T P 07 3003 9353
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

Cc: Greet, Maureen MS 1 <maureen.greetl@defence.gov.au>; Clifton, Alison MS <alison.clifton@defence.gov.au>
Subject: Assistant Minister for Defence, the Hon Darren Chester MP attendance at Public Forum - Update on
Contamination at Oakey - Oakey RSL - 0800h to 1000h - FRIDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2015. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED
Good afternoon Louise,

I am writing to advise you of a public community forum that is taking place on Friday 4 er 2015 at the Oakey RSL
between 0800h and 1000h.

The Hon lan Macfarlane MP as the Federal Member for Groom, has invited the tant er for Defence, the Hon
Darren Chester MP, to attend this forum to provide an update to the community, ination at Oakey. AMINDEF
has accepted.

Attendees will include Mr Macfarlane and staff; Assistant Minister for Def¢
Commonwealth Defence representatives. Dr Mathew Klein will also be atte
public (expected 30-50, room capacity is 100 max).

The intent is to provide an update to the community on the
issues.

Noting Dr Klein's attendance and the community presencg
could be present at this meeting to assist on the day and

uld be positive if a QLD Health representative
y concerns with the Minister and the community.

Can you please advise if this can be arranged.

Thanks
Steve

Stephen Peios

Strategic Contamination Mandgémen
Environment and Engineeri
BP26-2-B070, Departme
CANBERRA ACT 260

@ Ph:02 6266 8501 |
E stephen.peios@defence.g

e: 0477 393 074

IMPORTANT: This email remains the property of the Department of Defence and is subject to the jurisdiction of section 70
of the Crimes Act 1914. If you have received this email in error, you are requested to contact the sender and delete the
email.

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended by the author at the time and it
is not to be distributed without the author's consent. Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no
liability for the contents of this email except where subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinions expressed
in this email are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the views of the State of Queensland. This
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email is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege. If you have received this email in error,
please notify the author and delete this message immediately
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Myra Thompson

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Friday, 24 July 2015 2:44 PM

To: Sophie Dwyer; HProtSD_dchocorro

Subject: FW: Contact in Queensland Health to include on PFOS blood testing results letters re
Defence funded program [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: Results letter draft 20150716mod.docx; Oakey Information Pamphlet.pdf

Importance: High

Hi Sophie and Myra

Letters as requested.

Regards

Penny

From: Blain, Helen MS [mailto:helen.blain@defence.gov.au]

Sent: Friday, 17 July 2015 2:42 PM

To: Penny Hutchinson

Cc: Taloni, Kerry MS; Callinan, Scott MR 1; Pearce, Vicki MISS 1

Subject: Contact in Queensland Health to include on PFOS blood egults’letters re Defence funded program

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Importance: High

UNCLASSIFIED

&

Dear Penny

As you are aware Defence has funded some ting for presence of PFOS etc for some members of the Oakey
community. We have been advised that the laboraior has completed some testing and we seeking to make
arrangements in terms of provision of results backyg the residents. If possible | would like to include a reference to
people being able to contact Queensla alth for further information if required. Attached is our proposed draft letter
and information pamphlet to acco

eview please and advise whether you are able to provide a contact for
for Entox to forward the results as soon as possible

| would be most grateful for y
Queensland Health. It would be our int

Many thanks Helen

Helen Blain
Acting Assistant Secretary
Environment and Engineering Branch

DSRG Infrastructure Division | DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE

Ph: 02 6266 8052 | Fax: 02 6266 8077 | Mob: |Address: BP26-2-B001 | PO Box 7925 | Canberra BC
2610

Email: Helen.Blain@defence.qov.au

Website: www.defence.gov.au/environment
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IMPORTANT: This email remains the property of the Department of Defence and is subject to the jurisdiction of section 70
of the Crimes Act 1914. If you have received this email in error, you are requested to contact the sender and delete the
email.
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Oakey Citizen
Address line 1
Address line 2

July 2015

Dear Citizen,

I refer to your recent blood test for the presence of perfluroalkyl acids (PFAAS). As you may

know these chemicals are present in some formulations of Aqueous EHEFighting Foams. The

chemicals also occur in everyday products such as wet-weather ater and stain

repellents, and non-stick cookware. We have included furtheyinifor n in a pamphlet

enclosed with this letter.

This blood testing measured several PFAAs present in
are reported below. Fluorochemicals are commonly @r d i

included your personal levels as well as in atio

to be occupationally exposed to fluorinatg als in the US. Please note that previous
effeCts

studies have not identified any specjfi caused by these chemicals.

You may wish to discuss the results\gf¢he testing with your doctor or alternatively by having

discussions with Queenslapd Health at
Yours sincerely,

Entox

DOH-DL 16/17-042) page ro. «5



Results from Perfluroalkyl Acids Chemical Analysis

Participant name: HBSOAK15 01
Blood collection date:

What levels of PFAAs were measured in my blood?

Your serum concentration of PFOS, PFOA and PFHXS is shown below in Table 1. Importantly,
despite many studies in people who have had higher exposure than residents in Oakey, there have
been no health issues directly attributable to high levels of PFOS and PFHXS.

Table 1. Your serum concentration (ng/mL serum) of PFOS, PFOA and PFHXS

PFOS PFOA J—_ PFHxS
You 54.8 3.0 ([ 7/ A 110
Australian average 10.25 4.45 \\V/ )) 334
USA average 9.32 307 —~ ~— 166
'Geometric mean concentrations from a Queensland study. Samples(fr 0-2011
2 Geometric mean concentrations from a USA study. Samples from -2030

How does my level compare to others in the communi

In the figure below we show how your level of PFOS compare s that were measured in:
1. The general Australian community in 2006-200 i

3. A group of people who were occupatio
facility in the USA in 2000 (shown in red).

100001 -1

-
g 1000
2 200
5
2
c//100

j

Figure 1: Serum concentrations of PFOS in the general Australian population (blue), general USA
population (orange), and 3M manufacturing workers (red). Your serum concentration of PFOS is
shown by the green line. The vertical axis shows PFOS concentration in ng/mL serum, the coloured
boxes indicate the geometric mean concentrations, and the whiskers indicate the 95" percentile
concentration reported in these groups (maximum concentration for 3M study). The levels in 3M
workers are much higher so the vertical (y-) axis of this graph has been split in two.

Abbreviations: perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS); perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHXxS);

perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA); ng/mL (nanograms per millilitre). 1 nanogram = 0.000001 milligram.
1 ng/mL =1 part of a substance in a billion parts of serum.
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Background information: perfluoroalkyl acids in serum

What are PFOS/PFOA and where are they found?

PFOS and the related chemicals PFHxS and PFOA are types of perfluoroalkylated substances that are used
as, and referred to, as fluorosurfactants. Fluorosurfactants are a type of man-made organic compound that
alter the surface tension of a liquid. They can be found in everyday products such as all-weather clothing,
water and stain repelling agents, and non-stick cookware. Fluorosurfactants are also used in aqueous film
forming foams (AFFFs), used by Defence for training and operational firefighting purposes. AFFFs were also
used by Aviation Rescue Fire Fighting up until 2010.

Why are PFOS and related chemicals being phased out of use?
The manufacture and use of PFOS is being discontinued through international agreements and voluntary
actions by manufacturers primarily because of its persistence in the environment, rather than because of

any established health effects. Fluorosurfactants break down very slowly g environment under
naturally occurring conditions. They are resistant to biological and most chenji gradations. Because of
this, they tend to accumulate in the food chain and in human tissue. The interhatti ientific community
has identified this characteristic as undesirable because of the potenggfor unforeseen effects resulting

from accumulating levels, and the difficulty in removing these chemi¢als e environment once they
are released.

Have | been exposed to PFOS/PFOA?

Yes, fluorosurfactants are found in the blood of the general pojula Il over the world. The sources of
exposure in the general population are not fully underst pown that exposure to trace levels
can occur through the food supply and in some cases, e gxesence of these chemicals in drinking
water supplies. Fire fighters may also have been ose FOY 2nd related compounds because of the

ay be absorbed through the skin when
ently no direct evidence of the extent to which

serum lipids and other biochemical indicatqrs which are related to the blood levels of PFOS, PFOA and
other fluorochemicals. Howeyer there is noslgar evidence that this is related to any adverse health effects.
Even in heavily exposed m turing workers (up to 1,000 fold higher than the general population),
studies have not found speci alth effects directly attributable to this exposure.

Should | be co n out the results of the animal studies describing exposure to
PFOS/PFOA?
Studies of chemy
what effects
effects are 4
times higher he levels observed in people in the general population. While such studies help
scientists to identifk toxic responses to a chemical, this information cannot be directly related to humans
who are exposed at mlch lower concentrations. While everyone in the community has been exposed to
PFOS and PFOA, mainly through food sources, PFOS exposures in the community are substantially less than
the exposure determined by animal studies. Also, animals clear these chemicals from their body in
different ways to humans so results from animal testing cannot be directly extrapolated to humans.

ects in animals are conducted at very high doses in order to give scientists an idea of
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Myra Thompson

From: Sophie Dwyer

Sent: Thursday, 25 August 2016 1:58 PM

To: Harvey, Renee MS

Cc: Siemionow, Stef MS; Pearce, Vicki MS 1

Subject: RE: Copy of HHS response [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: 091-16 Stacey Hannon_Dept Defence_Oakey water_counselling_HSCE signed 20....pdf

Copy of letter attached, Renee

Sophie Dwyer PSM @

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
L %,

() ©
. Customers frst .Idra % into action QHHLEHH potential BA phungme @ Empoveer people

" Government

From: Harvey, Renee MS [mailto:renee.harvey®défénce.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 25 August 2016 10:27 AM

To: Sophie Dwyer

Cc: Siemionow, Stef MS; Pearce, Vi
Subject: Copy of HHS response

=UN FIED]

UNCLASSIFIED
Hi Sophie,

As discussed, we are chasi e response to the letter dated 16 June 2016 from Stacey Hannon regarding: Mental
health and counselling support sérvices for residents of the Oakey investigation area

Based on our discussion just now, the response was issued by the Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service.
Our policy team has not seen this response. It would be very helpful if you could forward a copy to me.
Many thanks

Renee

Renee Harvey

DOH-DL 16/1.7-0421 rage o.s:



Contractor to Defence

Environmental Remediation Programs
Department of Defence

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
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Qnsland

Government
Enquiries to:  Dr Peter Gillies . .
Telephone: (61 7) 4699 8412 Office of Chief Executive
Facsimile: (61 7) 4699 8400
Our Ref: HSCE 091-16 Darling Downs Hospital
Your Ref: ASEE-ID/OUT/2016/AF25557500 and Health Service

Ms Stacey Hannon

Acting Assistant Secretary
Environment and Engineering Branch
Brindabella Business Park

PO Box 7925

Department of Defence

CANBERRA ACT 2610

Dear Ms Hannon

Thank you for your letter dated 16 June 2016 in relatle gntal health and counselling
support for residents of the Oakey investigation as addressed to Ms Sophie
Dwyer, Executive Director Health Protection Br, ensland Department of Health.
Ms Dwyer forwarded your letter to me vigemai 0 e 2016.

0

In response to your queries, | am able to g e following:

a) Whether there are ample clin
services available to the Oas

These servicesmere advertised throughout the community (newspaper and social
media) and | via a drop-in session with the Darling Downs Hospital and
Health Servi representatives and myself on Thursday 16 June in Oakey.
ing sessions were ceased on Friday 1 July 2016 due to
only 1 community member attended. The counselling service

been no presentations or queries made at the Oakey Hospital or of its Community
Nurses for counselling or mental health issues related to ground water
contamination. There has been some contact made at the Oakey Hospital from
community members enquiring when and where they can get their bloods taken and
tested for PFOS and PFOA levels.

Office of Chief Executive

Cnr Hogg and Tor Streets

PO Box 405 Toowoomba

Queensland 4350 Australia
Telephone +61 7 4699 8888
Facsimile +617 4699 8933
www.health.qld.gov.au/darlingdowns

Page 1 of 2 ABN 64 109 516 141



c) Are there any actual barriers to residents accessing these services (such as
payment, transport, operating hours)?

The counselling services were offered free to the community and there is adequate
transport options available for community members to attend the Oakey Hospital.
The counselling sessions were available both in-hours and after-hours to cater for
the community needs.

d) Are there any perceived barriers (such as stigma of participation, lack of
awareness)?

There are no obvious barriers to participation of which wi awpfe. ltis difficult to
gauge barriers associated with stigma without direct feedb the community.
There has been no feedback in this regard.

e) Whether Queensland Health considers there are n| i
overcoming actual or perceived barriers,
services?

es that my assist in
nt the available

No. Note that counselling services were
of attendance and there has been no cd
Community Services for counsell es

Friday 1 July 2016 due to lack

' m Je with the Oakey Hospital or of its
und this issue.

f) Is there any gap in services t fit the Oakey community?

Onsite Social Work services.

Darling Downs Hospital and
Department of Defence on tR
hesitate to contact me on (07)

ice Jooks forward to continuing to work with the
you require any further information, please don’t

Yours sincerely

A MBA MBChB GAICD
Health Se : hlef Executive

Darling Downs™Kospital and Health Service
2.9107/2016

Page 2 of 2 Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service

DOH-DL 16/17-042: se o.ss



Myra Thompson

From: Sophie Dwyer

Sent: Friday, 11 December 2015 8:10 AM

To: bscal@doh.health.nsw.gov.au

Subject: Fwd: Corrections to presentation
Attachments: Oakey - December 2015 v2.ppt; ATT00001.htm

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Janet Cumming <Janet.Cumming@health.gld.gov.au> @
dchocorro

Date: 10 December 2015 at 11:55:39 AM AEDT

To: Sophie Dwyer <Sophie.Dwyer@health.qld.gov.au>, HProtSD _
<HProtSD_dchocorro@health.qld.gov.au>
Cc: Suzanne Huxley <Suzanne.Huxley@health.gld.gov.au>

Subject: Corrections to presentation

Some minor corrections thanks to Greg's eagle ey

Dr Janet Cumming BSc(Hon) PhD

Advanced Environmental Health Scientist (Water
Water Unit, Health Protection Branch
Prevention Division

Department of Health

15 Butterfield Street, Herston QIld 4006

PO Box 2368
Fortitude Valley BC 4006
Phone: 07 3328 9346

Fax: 07 3328 9354 &\
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Timeline

« Use of AFFF at Oakey 1977-2006
« 1988: First investigations & controlsj
« 1997: First remediation of traini

« 2010: PFOS detected in gr

ented
rea
r on base

« 2013: PFOS detecte water off base
« 2014: extended as sampling, first community

consultatlon&
« 2015: C with Queensland Government
Irs

— May: Fi eeting DoH and DoD
— June: First Interdepartmental Committee (IDC)
— October: DP&C assume responsibility for IDC




Extent

Large plume
extends from base
towards the town of
Oakey

» Highest conc range

on base: PFOA &
PFOS 50-500 ug/L;

* Highestconcr e

off base: P Oi -
9.99 ug/L,
10-49 ug/L




Exposure

Area known to be affected largely small
scale rural holdings, relia @ore water
for some purposes

— lrrigation, stock wa >~ro domestic use
“ (

— Agriculture in fopping (e.g. corn,
cotton o c production

The a s an export abattoir that
o e groundwater (1 of 3 bores

O

treated groundwater was used for
Oakey supply 2008-2010, blended 30-
50% with piped water from Toowoomba




iy X

Concerns m'

Blood sampling initiated by private citizen, then followed
by DoD testing @

— Results show elevated concentrations o Sand PFHXxS, but

not PFOA @.
— No exposure data to inform the@ results

PFOA 19.21 (9.1)
PFHxS %6 3.1) 372.62 (11.3)
PFOS & 38 (15.2) 381.29 (28.5)
am the following reference:

— Toms, L.-M. L., C afat, A. M., Kato, K., Thompson, J., Harden, F., Hobson, P., Sjodin, A., Mueller, J. F., Jun. 2009. Polyfluoroalky!
chemicals in pooled\blpod serum from infants, children, and adults in Australia. Environ. Sci. Technol. 43 (11), 4194-4199.

Community Perception of importance of blood testing




Issues
« ‘Cycling’ of PFAS groundwaterasoilegrou@vater

— lrrigation activities on rural holdings
— Reuse of water from abattoir

« Complex hydrology with aqwfer@@fent depths

— Currently no depth profile of plu

— Contaminated area ove

« Exposure limits @
— No water gui %@
— No fo %rd

* Risks to?@ﬁ’y

* Recognition of differences between contamination sites




Suzanne Huxley

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Friday, 16 December 2016 11:46 AM

To: Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxley; Janet Cumming

Subject: FW: PFAS - Blood Testing Program for Per- and Poly-fluoroalkyl Substances

Hi Sophie, Suzanne and Janet,

Below is what the PHN has sent out to GPs in our region.
The following website is from the Hunter new England PHN
http://www.hneccphn.com.au/programs/pfas/

It is interesting to compare the two.

| raised the issue of the Oakey meetings not being well attended at the PHN clinicg

just felt that having access to the information readily available was all that waspeeded
| spoke with the Hunter New England Public Health Unit who advised that t@ns had a reasonable

attendance.

| have advised that if they require further assistance | am available to, t the impression that the PHN
really doesn’t want my involvement(they don’t want to upset the Co h).

Regards

Penny

From: Communications [mailto:communications@dd
Sent: Friday, 16 December 2016 10:18 AM
Subject: PFAS - Blood Testing Program for Pe

4
q S ]
DARLING DOWNS
AND WEST MORETON

An Australian Government Initiative

PFAS Voluntary Blood Testing Program for past
and previous residents of Oakey, QLD

DOH-DL 16/17-042: raero.c:
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Australian Government

Department of Health

ATTN: GP Practices & Mental Health Service Providers

Dear Colleagues,

As you may know, the Oakey community has been affected e presence of Per-
and poly-fluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in their ground he Darling Downs &
West Moreton PHN has been engaged by the Departm f Health to assist you to
provide support to the community through the proyigio e- and post-blood test
counselling (GPs) and psychological therapies and | health services. | have
attached the media release for your informatio

All related forms and information sh e located on our website under

the 'referral forms' menu (CLICK HE it has been advised that any queries

relating to the PFAS program cz fas@health.gov.au for the Department

to follow up directly.

RESOURCES:

. | CLAIM FORWPFA -fluorinated alkyl substances: Pre and Post Blood Tests

N
° '@CLAIM F@’%&RFAS Poly-fluorinated alkyl substances: Psychological Therapies &
Mental Health Service

° '@ 9:@ bf Health Media Statement — Voluntary blood testing available for people
in OakeyandNVilliamtown — 30 November 2016

° I@Map m\/ Investigation Area

° '@Voluntarv Blood Testing Program for PFAS — Presentation Notes by Dr Tony Hobbs,

Australian Government Chief Medical Officer

° '@ Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS — Factsheet

° ﬁ Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS — Pre-test consultation advice for GPs

. T Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS — Post-test consultation advice for GPs

DOH-DL 16/17-042: rege o o1



° '@ Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS — Advice on PFAS for GPs

° '@ Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS — Program information for GPs

° ﬁ Per- and Poly-fluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS): an epidemiological study

. B Statutory Declaration — Blood testing for PFAS (for adults)

° E Statutory Declaration — Blood testing for PFAS (for adults)

° ﬁ Statutory Declaration — Blood testing for PFAS (for minors)

° E Statutory Declaration — Blood testing for PFAS (for minors)

Sincerely,
Ph: 07 46150900 IDAFELINC. D{OWAS
Direct: 07 46150935 AMND WEST MOR

Fax: 07 4615 0595

PO Box 81, 145 Taylor Street,
Toawoomba; Queensland, 4350 tetlel radifignal custodians of the lands
Email:communications@ddwmphn.comau it 2 % /and pay our EEE;IE!CI:*‘“ to ¢ “
Website: www.ddwmphn.com:au i :

Mevyy, Chislmas
& (rﬂppu News lifﬂ*{

Darfing Downs & West Moraton PHN acknowledges the GPs, Allied Health service providers, nurses,

hospital staff and ambulance & emergency servicas warkers who work tirelessly over the Christmas period.
Our office will be closed from Mosdaw 26 December 2016 to Tuesday 3 January 2017.
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Monday, 12 December 2016 4:01 PM

To: Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxley; Janet Cumming

Subject: FW: GP presentations - Voluntary Blood Testing Program [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: PFAS slides for DCMO - Presentation to PHNs and GPs - Blood Testing Program -
face to face.pdf; Voluntary Blood Testing Program - Program Information for
GPs.pdf

Hi Sophie, Suzanne and Janet,

The Commonwealth has attempted to provide information sessions for the GPs both here and in Newcastle.

There was a teleconference held on 7/12/16 which | didn’t know about (only heard ghout through NSW colleagues)
and a face to face meeting to be held on Thursday 15/12/16. This face to face meg 4s been cancelled due to
lack of attendees (although they only advertised it today)
The PHN has kindly sent me the powerpoints that were to be used for the face to face:
My feeling is the lack of notice and the time of year. | also think that Toowggmb s are still not aware that this is
relevant to them.

| thought | might do something locally. | will raise at the PHN clinical £gu 2fing tomorrow evening and take

things from there.

Regards

Penny

From: Communications [maiIto:communications@ddwmm)m.au
Sent: Monday, 12 December 2016 3:55 PM %

To: Penny Hutchinson
Subject: FW: GP presentations - Voluntary Blood Tes 0g [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Penny

As discussed, | confirm that the face to fasgYnformation session scheduled for this Thursday has now been
cancelled.

Please refer to the attached presen slides and info sheet provided by the Department.

Additionally, all relevant for info sheeéts can be located on our website at
www.ddwmphn.com.au/pf

Please advise if you g further or if there is anything that | can assist with.

Kind regards,

John Hewitt

Communications Manager p n

Ph: 07 46150900 DARLING DOWMNS
Direct: 07 4615 0935 AND WEST MORETON

Fax: 07 4615 0999

An Australian Government initiative

PO Box 81, 145 Taylor Street,

Toowoomba, Queensland, 4350 We acknowdedge the traditional custodians of the lands
Ernaitcommunicationsi@ddwmphn.com.au onvwhich we work each day, and pay our respects to ’ h
Website: www.ddwmphn.com.au Elders of those lands, both past and present. '

DOH-DL 16/17-042: raero.



Yy Chnistinas
G happy New Yean

Darling Downs & West Moreton PHN acknowledges the G Ps, Allied Health servie
hospital staff and ambulance & emergency serwices workers who work tirelessly ower the Christmas period.

Our office will be closed from Monday 26 December 2016 to Tuesday ¥ January 2017.

From: FEARNE, Julie [mailto:Julie.Fearne@health.gov.au]

Sent: Monday, 12 December 2016 2:24 PM

To: Debbie Frost <debbie@ddwmphn.com.au>

Cc: Communications <communications@ddwmphn.com.au>; TOMS, Cindy <Cindy.Toms@health.gov.au>
Subject: RE: GP presentations - Voluntary Blood Testing Program [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Debbie

Thank you for making enquiries within your team with regard to the proposed Oakey face4o fas onsultation on 15 December.
| have discussed this with Cindy and we have agreed that we shall cancel this face t ultation, based your advice below.
Can you please advise the GPs in the region to this effect.

Noting that you have received one RSVP for this event already, please find attgehetNe * am information for GPs” fact sheet

and a copy of the presentation that was to be delivered by Dr Tony Hobbs whj m vided to any interested physicians in
the area. In addition, the factsheets for this program are available online at .heAlth .au/PFAS.

Also please let GPs know that if they have any queries about the progr ail\%)@health.gov.au and we will follow up with

them.

Please let me know if you have any queries.
Kind regards
[ s ——
Julie Fearne @
Acting Assistant Director | PFAS Coordination
Health Protection Policy Branch | Office of [th Py i
e@ye dJov.au

Department of Health |02 6289 9231 | julie!
Office hours: Monday, Tuesday, Thursday & Friday

N
&
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7R, Avstralian Government
,-\’: Department of Health

VOLUNTARY BLOOD TES@@OGRAM
FOR PFAS \

/>

Dr Tony Hobbs
Australian Goverr@D uty Chief Medical Officer
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=4 IO Australian Government
oNeTdias

95 Department of Health

Background @

What are Per- and Poly-fluoroalkyl Su Q@ (PFAS)?

- Man made chemicals widely u d 9503 In
household and industrial pro

- Most people I|V|ng In A I| | have measurable levels of
PFAS in thelr bIo
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AT Australian Government
h\‘v 295 RNED)

*Z85b095“ Department of Health

Human Health Effects @

The current health advice for PFAS expos
- There is currently no consist @ e that exposure to
PFOS and PFOA causes ad n health effects.
/n humans and the

mends that human exposure to
ised as a precaution.

- Because these chemi
environment, enHealth
these chemig% ini

12 December, 2016
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;W Australian Government

%95“ Department of Health

Exposure . @

~—
Exposure pathways Q@
« Primarily ingestion of contaminated groundwater or food.
- Low level exposure sources include:
o Inhalation of dust contaminated with PFAS; an
o Transdermal absorption
Minimising exposure @
« For advice on minimising exposura own area see:

o Department of Defence’s\Human{fealth Risk Assessment :
http://www.defence.gd®.an)id/ Ma docs/Williamtown/DefenceWilliamtownHHRAFactsheetAug1

6.pdf m %
o NSW EPA: htpil/ a.nsW.gov.au/protectingyourenvironment.htm

« For advice @ l sing e\xbosure in the Oakey area see:

o DepartmentofDeferrce’s Human Health Risk Assessment:
http://www.defence.qgov.au/id/ Master/docs/Oakey/Defence%200akey%20HHRA%20fact%20shee
t Sept16 WEB.pdf

o QLD Government: https://www.qgld.gov.au/environment/pollution/management/investigation-
pfas/oakey/index.html

12 December, 2016 3
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W Australian Government
*Re5gnE“  Department of Health

Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS@
S~

- The Program commenced on 30 November %@ﬁoﬁem a free

single voluntary blood test to eligible pe

- Free blood testing available until 3 18.
- Program will run concurre e/Epidemiological Study,
whereby, where consent is AS Blood Test results can be

included in Study. X
- Patients must @e 0 a Sonic Healthcare Collection Centre for

g test.

- This Program

testing arrangements.

12 December, 2016 4
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SffSIW:  Australian Government
“) o e

7655 Department of Health

The Role of the GP @

- General Practitioners will play a key role in try Blood

Testing Program.

- Patients are required to go throu o al GP in order to request
the PFAS blood test under

- The Australian Gov nt iIsY¥unding Pre and post-test counselling
by the GP.

- The Depa Health has released a number of factsheets to
assist GPs imunderstanding their responsibilities under this program.
These are available at www.health.gov.au/PFAS.

12 December, 2016
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529  Australian Government
h\‘v %

*Z85b095“ Department of Health

Patient Eligibility @,

N——

- People eligible for a blood test include:

o Those who currently live or work in the Oakey, QLD,
Investigation Areas; OR

o previously lived or worked in the Investigation Areas of
Oakey but now live elsewhere

o Children who live in the Oakey Investigation Areas or who
undertake day to day activities in the Investigation Areas are also eligible

- Statutory Declar

- Additional ¢

o Eligibility i s received a blood test previously received under the
Department @f\Defense Interim arrangement

o Eligibility for Australian Defence Force Personnel

rations:

12 December, 2016
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'- ([T "' .
ceffies W Australian Government

7855095 Department of Health

Pre-Test Consultation . @

N——

- See the Voluntary Blood Testing Program for, Pre-test
consultation advice for GPs factsheet for, ' formation on the
pre-test consultation.

. Key discussion points with the a y include:
o Limitations of the blood te

o Treatment.

‘ kr email commercial.path@sonichealthcare.com
Request Form from Sonic Healthcare.

- The epidemiological study.

12 December, 2016
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4T Australian Government
h\‘v ST RRED)

[ ] Australian
f’f: National

1 University

An Epidemiological Study for Williamtown @Oakey

*Z85b095“ Department of Health

for Epidemiology and Population Health alian National
University (ANU) to examine the pot th effects resulting from
PFAS exposure through an eplde@ a study

« The Australian Government has commssmn@g ional Centre
I

- Participation in the st wi ely voluntary, however, it will be
important for as m pIe s possible to participate in this study to
ensure that the s s arg.as meaningful as possible.

12 December, 2016 8
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ceffies W Australian Government

7855095 Department of Health

Post-test Consultation @

- See the Voluntary Blood Testing Program for, st-test
consultation advice for GPs factsheet for, formatlon on the
post-test consultation.

- Key discussion points wit 1@:' include:

o There are no normal w‘xren ¢ ranges for PFAS.

o Minimising expo
o Testing freq
o If required

Jency.
grral toadditional Mental Health and Counselling Services.

12 December, 2016
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AW Australian Government
=B AN

hATe Department of Health
Further Information @
@ ~—
- Further information is available from the Dep Health website

at: http://www.health.gov.au/pfas
- Epidemiological Study questions:

Dr Martyn Kirk Rosemary Korda

T: (02) 6125 5609 @@T (02) 6125 5583
u

E: martyn.kirk@an E: rosemary.korda@anu.edu.au

AN

12 December, 2016 10
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Resgndt“  Department of Health

QUESTIONS?

Please forward any further

PN,
PFAS@heaIth.QO\KX

S
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Australian Government

Department of Health

Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS
PROGRAM INFORMATION FOR GPs

From 30 November 2016, the Australian Government will E|igibi|ity for testing
provide a free blood test for Per- and Poly-fluoroalkyl
Substances (PFAS) to people who live or work,

or have lived or worked, in the Williamtown, NSW
and Oakey, QLD, Investigation Areas.

Eligibility for testing under, pogdram should be

The Voluntary Blood Testing Program will run
concurrently with an epidemiological study and free
blood testing will be available to eligible individuals
until 31 March 2018.

Where individual consent is given, the PFAS blood test
results from these areas may be used as part of an
epidemiological study to improve the understanding
of potential health effects relating to PFAS exposure.
Please refer to the factsheet Per- and Poly-fluoroalky!
Substances (PFAS): an epidemiological study for

more information on the epidemiological study.
ave previously lived or worked in the

vestigation Areas of Williamtown and Oakey
but now live elsewhere.

The Australian Government has commissioned
National Centre for Epidemiology and Populatj
(NCEPH) at the Australian National Univegi
to examine the potential health effects result
from PFAS exposure in the affected communities

of Williamtown, NSW, and Oakey, through an A Statutory Declaration will be required from the
epidemiological study. individual seeking a blood test, or the parent or

guardian of a minor, to confirm they are eligible
for a free blood test under this program.

Statutory Declaration

People seeking blood tests should print and sign the
pre-filled Statutory Declaration on the Department

of Health website before presenting at your practice.
The Department of Health will also supply your practice
with pre-filled Statutory Declaration forms to be

used by patients who do not bring the form.

of be provided with
the personal details df adyone seeking a blood test
under this program.

While the Voluntary Blood Testing Program was being
developed, the Department of Defence established
interim arrangements to reimburse individuals in

the Williamtown, NSW and Oakey, QLD, Investigation
Areas who have already obtained blood tests.

These interim arrangements will cease following the
commencement of the Voluntary Blood Testing Program.

The following information will assist you if a person
presents to your practice wishing to obtain a free PFAS
blood test.
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Requesting a PFAS blood test

Sonic Healthcare has been engaged by the Australian
Government to conduct the blood testing for the
Voluntary Blood Testing Program. Sonic Healthcare
will provide your practice with specially marked

PFAS request forms that are pre-filled with the PFAS
testing and billing requirements. This form should be
provided to eligible people seeking a blood test under
the Voluntary Blood Testing Program. For additional
PFAS request forms please email commercial.path@
sonichealthcare.com or call 02 9855 5437.

All blood tests under the Voluntary Blood Testing
Program must be done by Sonic Healthcare.

The Australian Government will not reimburse the costs
of blood tests performed by other pathology providers.

The specially marked request forms will include a sectiq

contacting them in the future.

Patients must take their completed
and specially marked PFAS requ
Healthcare Pathology Collecti
will use the Statutory Declarg
the Australian Governme

Can people not eigible
Blood Testing Pfog
for PFAS?

Individuals not eligib
this program or not willindxtg?sign the Statutory
Declaration form can be referred for a blood test
but at their own cost.

In this instance, a standard pathology request form
should be issued and the pathology provider will bill the
patient directly. The private testing fee is approximately
$500 plus GST and is not covered by Medicare.

Patients should also be advised on the diagnostic
and prognostic value of the blood test — see factsheet
Advice on PFAS for GPs.

Can a person who has already had a blood
test, either privately or the interim
Department of Defenc gement,

get a blood test under olunjary

Blood Testing Prg

Yes, however:

ants to get another blood test,
ise eligible for the Voluntary Blood

Pléase refer to the factsheet Per- and Poly-fluoroalky!
dbstances (PFAS): an epidemiological study for
more information on the Epidemiological Study.

Australian Defence Force personnel

Full-time Australian Defence Force personnel
(including Reserves rendering continuous full-time
service) should seek testing through their usual
Defence garrison health facility.

If eligible, families of Australian Defence Force
personnel can access testing through the
Voluntary Blood Testing Program for PFAS.

Cost of testing and consultation

The laboratory test for PFAS is free for those eligible
for a blood test under the Voluntary Blood Testing
Program for PFAS.

Under the Voluntary Blood Testing Program, a free
blood test and two free general practice consultations
are available to eligible people — one prior to

the blood test, and one following the blood test.

This will ensure that they are adequately informed

of the limitations of the blood test and have their
follow up questions addressed.
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Practitioners from anywhere in Australia who provide
eligible consultations, should bill consultations to:

Hunter New England Central Coast Primary Health
Network for people who currently live or work, or have
previously lived or worked, in the Williamtown, NSW,
Investigation Area; and

Darling Downs and West Moreton Primary Health
Network for people who currently live or work, or
have previously lived or worked, in the Oakey, QLD,
Investigation Area.

Please see the Hunter, New England & Central Coast
PHN website or the Darling Downs West Moreton
Primary Health Network website for further details.

Any other consultations in relation to possible
PFAS-related health issues, including with
individuals not eligible for a free blood test under
the Voluntary Blood Testing Program, or furthe
consultations regarding blood test results shou

GP within seven days throug
usual channel for receivi

services if required.

For further information on interpreting PFAS blood test
results please refer to the factsheet Post-test consultation
advice for GPs.

As mentioned above, the results will also be provided
to the ANU for inclusion in the epidemiological study
where consent for that process has been provided.

Investigation Areas

Williamtown, NSW

Click here to view the

4bo 2Williamtown
4ding/r¢gcommendations
ssidertsCan minimise PFAS

gvailable:

rre 40 ation Area map.

here to view the current Investigation Area map.

rther information about the Oakey Investigation Area,
how to interpret the map and recommendations for
how affected residents can minimise PFAS exposure

in the future is available:

in the Department of Defence’'s Human Health
Risk Assessment (HHRA) Fact Sheet; and

on the QLD Government website.

Further information

The Department of Health

For further information regarding the Australia
Government Department of Health's response

to PFAS contamination, including health advice
published by the Australian Health Protection Principal
Committee (AHPPC) and its subcommittee enHealth,
please go to the Department of Health website.

The Department of Defence

For further information regarding to the Department
of Defence's response to PFAS contamination and
site specific information please go the Department of
Defence website.
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Monday, 28 November 2016 1:42 PM

To: Simone; Sophie Dwyer

Cc: Roger Drew; Suzanne Huxley; Tarah Hagen

Subject: RE: meeting with Oakey and Toowoomba GPs PFAS blood testing
Hi Simone

The Commonwealth is finalising fact sheets for GPs and consumers and | was wondering if the contract has been
finalised so we can look at holding meetings for GPs. | know NSW is looking at holding some sessions in December.

Regards
Penny

From: Simone [mailto:simone@ddwmphn.com.au]

Sent: Wednesday, 16 November 2016 11:29 AM

To: Sophie Dwyer

Cc: Roger Drew; Penny Hutchinson; Suzanne Huxley; Tarah Hagen
Subject: Re: meeting with Oakey and Toowoomba GPs PFAS blood te

Really? That's interesting - will need to make sure the Cth are aw,

Simone

Simone Finch \
Chief Executive Officer

Darling Downs and West Moreton PHN

P

M|
Sent from my iPad

On 16 Nov 2016, at 11:25 AM, Sophi yer <Sophie.Dwyer@health.qld.gov.au> wrote:
Dear Simone Penny an ger

Doing several events j e given that the base at Amberley has now come into play, albeit a
lower risk profile.

Regards
Sophie Dwyer

From: Simone [mailfoxsimone@ddwmphn.com.au]

Sent: Wednesday, 16\\pvember 2016 11:13 AM

To: Roger Drew

Cc: Penny Hutchinson; Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxley; Tarah Hagen
Subject: Re: meeting with Oakey and Toowoomba GPs PFAS blood testing

Thanks Roger and Penny.

| have met with the Commonwealth Department of Health this week and am expecting a contract
for delivery this week (although I'm not holding my breath).
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Once | have that document, we will be able to pin down dates for working with the various GPs. |
suggest that we do a couple of events as getting them together in one place will be a huge
challenge.

We will also have a communications plan developed - in line with DOH - that will assist. I'm sure you
understand how political this is & that the community are feeling very vulnerable.

Looking forward to working with you.
Simone

Simone Finch

Chief Executive Officer

Darling Downs and West Moreton PHN
P

M

Sent from my iPad

On 16 Nov 2016, at 11:07 AM, Roger Drew <rogerdrew@toxconsult.

Hello Penny,

Thank you for the note. At this stage | can accommaodate
between now and 22" December if given suffici

Do you have in mind say an evening gr
road show?

Either way travelling from Melbourne wi
hire, and obviously flights. | think Sop

gujre vernight in Toowoomba, car
o financial support would be

available.
| am happy to reduce my usu 2 rate by 50%, also my hourly rate for
preparation of materials (if neg gr GPs also by 50%.

| can provide a quote when

Regards Roger

Roger Drew, PhD FACTRA
Toxicologist & Rigk/Asses

From: P tchinson [mailto:Penny.Hutchinson@health.gld.gov.au]
i ber 2016 6:10 PM
oxconsult.com.au

Cc: Sop%; Suzanne Huxley; Simone (simone@ddwmphn.com.au)

Subject: meeting with Oakey and Toowoomba GPs PFAS blood testing

Dear Roger

Sorry it has been a while and hope you are well.

You may recall at the meeting held in Oakey at the beginning of September, we
discussed having you come to Toowoomba to speak to the GPs from both Oakey

and Toowoomba.

Things are not clear as to when the funded testing program will commence,
however, | think it is still worthwhile arranging a meeting between yourself and the
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GPs. As mentioned at the meeting in September, | felt you explained the results in a
meaningful way for doctors.

| am aware we are approaching the holiday season so just wanted to check if there
would be an opportunity for you to visit Toowoomba before Christmas.

Please advise of your availability.

Regards
Penny

Dr Penny Hutchinson
Public Health Physician and Director | Darling Downs Public Health Unit
Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service

Ground Floor Browne House
Baillie Henderson Hospital
Cnr Tor and Hogg St
Toowoomba QLD 4350

P: 07 46998240 | F: 07 46998262

E: Penny.Hutchinson@health.gld.gov.au @

Web: hitp://www.health.gld.gov.au/darlingdowns/

Y

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confideatia ke sole use of the intended recipient(s). This
confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and ¢nded recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received
in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, iew _of this email is strictly prohibited. The information
contained in this email, including any attaghy ith it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates

to health service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if Yau Haye received this email in error, you are asked to immediately notify the
sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 180809875 or by return email. You should also delete this email, and any
copies, from your computer sygtem network and destheq any hard copies produced.

yQu must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any form of
whlication of this email is also prohibited.

If not an intended recipiepf of this enta
disclosure, modificatiop, {stribution andre

Although Queensldng Health s
Health does not accept responsibt

all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious software, Queensland
Oy the consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to
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

if the contract has been
e sessions in December.

The Commonwealth is finalising fact sheets for GPs and consumers and | was wondering
finalised so we can look at holding meetings for GPs. | know NSW is looking at ho

Regards
Penny

From: Simone [mailto:simone@ddwmphn.com.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 16 November 2016 11:29 AM
To: Sophie Dwyer

Simone

Simone Finch

Chief Executive Officer

Darling Downs and West Moreton PHN
P | 07 4615 0900

M |

Sent from my iPad \

On 16 Nov 2016, at 11:25 AM wyer <Sophie.Dwyer@health.gld.gov.au> wrote:

Dear Simone Penp

Doing several exe 9
lower risk profile
Regards
Sophie Dwyer

o\ Roger
ensible given that the base at Amberley has now come into play, albeit a

From: Simone [mailto:simone@ddwmphn.com.au]

Sent: Wednesday, 16 November 2016 11:13 AM

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

On 16 Nov 2016, at 11:07 AM, Roger Drew <rogerdrew@toxcopstit.co 24 wrote:
Hello Penny, O
Thank you for the note. At this stage | can acco e just’about any date
between now and 22" December if given suffic ti
Do you have in mind say an evening grou en with Q & A, or ‘one-one’
road show?

Either way travelling from Melbourne Wi ire)an overnight in Toowoomba, car
hire, and obviously flights. I think dicatgd financial support would be
available.

| am happy to reduce my u
preparation of materials (if
| can provide a quote when |

also by 50%.
ore details.

Regards Roger

Roger Drew, P DABT, TRA

Toxicologist & /’\ssessor
<image001. if> %

n [mailto:Penny.Hutchinson@health.gld.gov.au]

: 1 November 2016 6:10 PM

To: roger toxconsult.com.au

Cc: Sophie mabr; Suzanne Huxley; Simone (simone@ddwmphn.com.au)
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

E: Penny.Hutchinson@health.gld.gov.au

Web: hitp://www.health.gld.gov.au/darlingdowns/ @

sfesfeskokok

1on or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The information
contained in this email, including any attachweitt gent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates

Unless stated otherwidse(his email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Friday, 11 November 2016 5:10 PM

To: rogerdrew@toxconsult.com.au

Cc: Sophie Dwyer; Suzanne Huxley; Simone (simone@ddwmphn.com.au)
Subject: meeting with Oakey and Toowoomba GPs PFAS blood testing

Dear Roger

Sorry it has been a while and hope you are well.

You may recall at the meeting held in Oakey at the beginning of September, we discussed having you come to
Toowoomba to speak to the GPs from both Oakey and Toowoomba.
v

Things are not clear as to when the funded testing program will commence, howe kit is still

worthwhile arranging a meeting between yourself and the GPs. As mentio a meeting in September, | felt
you explained the results in a meaningful way for doctors.

| am aware we are approaching the holiday season so just wanted to c if th ould be an opportunity for you

to visit Toowoomba before Christmas.
Please advise of your availability.

Regards
Penny

Dr Penny Hutchinson
Public Health Physician and Director | Darling Dow, lic Health Unit
Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service

Ground Floor Browne House
Baillie Henderson Hospital
Cnr Tor and Hogg St
Toowoomba QLD 4350

P: 07 46998240 | F: 07 46998262
E: Penny.Hutchinson@health.gld.gsy.

Web: http://www.health.qu.qoxA@arlinqdow /
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Peter Boland

Sent: Thursday, 8 September 2016 11:31 AM

To: Janet Cumming; Katie Panaretto; Suzanne Huxley

Subject: FW: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation Project : Department
of Defence

Hi,

Following the release of the Human Health Risk Assessment Report by the Department of Defence the Oakey
Hospital wants to recommence using its bores to water their gardens. It appears as though they fall into zone 1.

Your thoughts would be appreciated.

Thanks,

Peter.

Peter Boland

Manager Environmental Health | Darling Downs Public Health Uni
Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service

Ground Floor, Browne House
Baillie Henderson Hospital
Cnr Tor & Hogg Street \

PO Box 405

TOOWOOMBA QLD 4350

P: 07 4699 8252 | F: 07 4699 8477

M:

E: Peter.Boland@health.qgld.gov.au

Web: http://www.health.qgld.gov.au/darlingdowns

From: Peter Jones \

Sent: Thursday, 8 Septembe 11 AM
To: Campbell McKinlay; Peter Boland

Cc: Richard Hart
Subject: RE: Army Avi

@n re Oakey Environmental Investigation Project : Department of Defence
Peter B your thoughts?
| don’t like the idea of vege watering but will take advice from the pros.

PJ

From: Campbell McKinlay

Sent: Thursday, 8 September 2016 11:05 AM

To: Peter Jones; Peter Boland

Cc: Richard Hart

Subject: FW: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation Project : Department of Defence
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Hi Pete and Pete

This morning | received a work order 94427741 from Oakey to have their irrigation bore turned back on so as they
can use the bore water to irrigate their flowers, vegetables and fruit trees.

What | am asking is what is the DDHHS thoughts on these risks and as we all know there will be a lot of skin contact
and the odd drink of water in gardening.

At present they use TRC water to irrigate their plants. The garden taps are signed (Do Not Drink) and if we do turn the
bore back on | would prefer to have the taps replaced with key taps so as the patients and public cannot access the
bore water from these taps.

Please see link below from the Defence Department.

http://www.defence.gov.au/id/oakey/Guidance.asp

I would like your guidance on this one.
Cheers
Ross @
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Suzanne Huxley

Sent: Wednesday, 31 August 2016 9:37 AM

To: Matthew Boyd; Penny Hutchinson

Subject: FW: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigation — Community

Information Events

Hi Penny and Matt

FYI if you have not yet seen the invitation to the community.

Regards

Suzanne @

From: Virginia Berry [mailto:Virginia.Berry@premiers.qld.gov.au]

Sent: Tuesday, 30 August 2016 11:21 AM

To: Suzanne Huxley

Subject: FW: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental Investigatiofy— ity Information Events

From: AUBNE1 - Defence Oakey [mailto:Defence.Oakey@wco@:

Sent: Monday, 29 August 2016 4:27 PM
To: AUBNEL1 - Defence Oakey <Defence.Oakey@aecom,
Subject: Army Aviation Centre Oakey Environmental | ign — Community Information Events

Dear Oakey Resident/Business Owner,

matidn sessions to provide local residents and business
figation into per- and poly-fluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) at the

The Department of Defence is holding com
owners with an update on the environmental in
Army Aviation Centre Oakey.

The Community Information Sessi
The Information Session will be f
business owners with an oppor
results of the Human Health

Community Walk-In Sessions that provide local residents and
ions about the environmental investigation to date including the

The Human Health Risk As sses questions such as:

Which PFAS g0 gxposed to in and around Oakey?

athways result in greater exposure than others?

Where are these pathways likely to occur (e.g. at home, at work, during recreation)?
What is the risk of potential health effects?

How can exposure be minimised in the future?

Community Information Session — Day 1

Date: Monday 5 September 2016
Time: 5:30pm - 7:00pm
Venue: Oakey Cultural Centre, Corner McDonald and Campbell Streets, Oakey Qld 4401.

This Community Information Session will include a presentation of the findings of the HHRA report. It will be followed
by two Community Walk-In Sessions to give local residents and business owners an opportunity to ask questions
about the findings of the HHRA report and the Environmental Site Assessment report at
http://www.defence.gov.au/id/oakey/Documents.asp.
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Community Walk-In Sessions — Day 2

Date: Tuesday 6 September 2016
Time: Morning session: 10:00am — 1:00pm
Afternoon session: 3:30pm — 7:00pm
Venue: Oakey Cultural Centre, Corner McDonald and Campbell Streets, Oakey Qld 4401

RSVP: 1800 136 129 or defence.oakey.anz@aecom.com before 5:00pm Friday 2 September 2016.

Light refreshments will be provided at all sessions. If you would like to attend, please RSVP to ensure adequate
catering.

For more information about the Environmental Investigation, please visit the project website at
www.defence.gov.au/id/Oakey/Default.asp.

If you have any questions about the Community Information Session or Walk-In Sessions, or the Environmental
Investigation, please contact the project team on 1800 136 129 or email defence.oakey.anz@aecom.com.

Yours sincerely,

AACO Environmental Investigation Project Team
P: 1800 136 129

E: Defence.Oakey@aecom.com

W: www.defence.gov.au/id/Oakey

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited t ed by the author at the time and
it is not to be distributed without the author's consent. Unless other U ated, the State of Queensland
accepts no liability for the contents of this email except whg Pseqaently confirmed in writing. The
opinions expressed in this email are those of the author and cessarily represent the views of the
State of Queensland. This email is confidential and be 3l 0

te

a claim of legal privilege. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the author an this message immediately

@
/\\Q:
&

DOH-DL 16/17-042: raero.:



Suzanne Huxley

From: Peter Boland

Sent: Wednesday, 24 June 2015 12:48 PM

To: Rebecca Richardson; Sophie Dwyer; Greg Jackson; Suzanne Huxley; Janet Cumming;
Penny Hutchinson; Matthew Boyd

Subject: RE: Oakey Taskforce Minutes

Attachments: 3112_001.pdf

Hi,

Please find attached briefing notes for Toowoomba Regional Council, prepared by Alan Kleinschmidt, Council’s
Manager Water Operations. This document outlines the history of water supplied tg the town and an assessment of
se osmosis before

g a Hiscussion with Mr

Kleinschmidt, on 5 May, he confirmed that this was still the case.

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

Web: http://www.health.qld.qov.au/dé(l\mdowns/

~N

15 8:59
; Suzanne Huxley; Janet Cumming; Penny Hutchinson; Peter Boland; Matthew Boyd
S

From: Rebecca Richardson
Sent: Wednesday, 17 June
To: Sophie Dwyer; Greg
Subject: Oakey Taskf

Hi all,
Please find attached the meeting minutes

Regards
Rebecca

Rebecca Richardson

A/Senior Environmental Health Officer

Water Team, Health Protection Unit

Chief Health Officer Branch

Department of Health

Level 3, 15 Butterfield Street, Herston QLD 4006
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PO Box 2368
Fortitude Valley BC QLD 4006

Telephone: 07 3328 9348

Fax: 07 3328 9354
email: Rebecca.richardson@health.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au
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PREPARED BY: Alan Kleinschmidt Manager Water Operations

DATE: 18 July 2014

Summary

A study undertaken by the Department of Defence (DoD}shows that gro er \nthe
vicinity of the Army Aviation Centre Oakey has been contaminated with th Is

perfluoroctane sulphonate {PFOS) and perfluoroactanoic acid {PF
been identified as having potential human health impacts when p

collected from Council’s Oakey Bore 7 and Bore 8 at concemn
States Environmental Protection Agency’s (USEPA) provyisi

Historical data shows that the only time whe ply consumers may have
been exposed to potentially contaminated wa wthe-getiod between 2008 and 2012
when these bores were used to supply the Oakey rse Osmosis Plant {(ROP). The
maximum possible average concentration g, ater supply during this period is

0.5 micrograms/L. This concentration exce ESBPA’s provisional limit but is unlikely to
pose a significant health risk given sho'nt possible exposure period and the
inherent conservatism in the cal isional limit, which assumes lifetime

ExXposure.

Further, reverse osmosis has been de trated to effectively treat PFOS at concentrations

significantly higher tha
therefore be expectegd

It is considered
drinking wate

have been identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) as
potential groundwater contaminants which may adversely impact on human health.

e The Department of Defence (DoD) identified that PFOS and PFOA were present in
firefighting foams used for training activities at the Army Aviation Centre Qakey (AACO)
between 1970 and 2005, and that as a result may have contaminated groundwater
underlying the AACO.
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e In 2012, DoD commenced a study into the potential greundwater contamination.
Council's Principal Scientist Laboratory Services (fohn Mills) attended a public briefing on
the study in the latter part of 2012,

e This study indicated the potential for off-site groundwater contamination and a targeted
groundwater sampling program commenced in November 2013. Council was
approached to provide access for the callection of water samples from a number of
water supply bores in the vicinity of the AACO.

e In early May 2014, stakeholders, including TRC, were advised that groundwater impacts
were identified in a number of bores and that further sampling was to be undertaken in
May 2014. Council’s Bore 7 and Bore 8 (both located at the Oakey Showgrounds) were
amongst the identified impacted bores. At this time | contacted DoD seeking detailed
information about the water quality testing results but no information was forthcoming.

advising not to drink the water from their home bore dyg
concerns, and inviting them to a community meeting o

was able to advise that Council was aware of th ¢ inyastigation, but that we had
not yet received specific advice about co i rations or the public
meeting.

e Isubsequently determined that 2 letteps had B warded to Council, cne addressed
to the Mayor giving general informatid Khe outcomes and the second addressed
to John Mills containing detailed ; fetters were dated 14 July 2014, were
received by Council on 17 Jui Z014and weredistributed through Pathway on the
morning of 18 July.

and liver and are relatively persistent. Animal studies have shown these
a{s to have potential developmental, reproductive and other systematic
Lohg term exposure may promote tumour formation. Data from human
clinical studies does not appear to be available. The USEPA identified consumption
of cantaminated fish as the primary exposure route for humans.

Drinking Water Guideline Values

e Due to the status of PFOS and PFOA as emerging contaminants, neither the
Australian Drinking Water Guidelines (ADWG) or the World Health Organisation
Guidelines for Drinking Water Quality contain health based limits.
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in January 2008, the USEPA established provisional guideline values of 0.2
micrograms/l. for PFOS and 0.4 micrograms/L for PFOA. These values assume
lifetime exposure, are based on a conservative treatment of the available animal
study data and have been adopted as the basis for assessing the Oakey bore water
test result. As of February 2014 the USEPA has initiated peer review of human
health effects documents for PFOS and PFOA. When finalised, the USEPA will use
these documents to determine final water concentration limit values.

Detection of PFOS and PFOA in Oakey Groundwater

Untreated bore water was sampled in ali cases.

PFOS and PFOA were detected in water samples taken from Oakey Bore 7 and
Oakey Bore 8 in November 2013, January 2014 and May 2014.

Assessment of Oakey Water Supply Impacts

Cakey water supply source history:

Pre 1997:

1997 - 2008:

h from Qakey Bores 7 and 8 ranged between 12.6% and
9% of the groundwater supplied to the Oakey RO and between
and 22.6% of total Oakey water supply.

possible average concentration of PFOC in the water suppiied to the Oakey ROP
during the period 2008 ~ 2012 is estimated at 0.8 micrograms/L. The maximum
overall average concentration in the Oakey water supply for the same period is
estimated at 0.5 micrograms/L. This value assumes no removal of PFOC during
treatment.

The USEPA advises that reverse osmosis is effective at removing PFOS and PFOA
from drinking water. A 2008 study undertaken for the Minnesota Department of
Health demonstrated that reverse osmosis was capable of treating PFOS at a starting
concentration of 2.5 — 3.5 micrograms/L to <0.02 micrograms/L.
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» PFOS concentrations in Qakey RO feed and treated water were obviously not tested,
however the Minnesota Department of Health study indicates that a reverse
osmosis system would be expected to effectively treat feed water containing the
estimated maximum concentration of 0.8 micrograms/L PFOS to a final
concentration well below the USEPA provisional value of 0.2 micrograms/L.

Conclusions

¢ PFOS and PFOA are emerging drinking water contaminants of potential human
health concern.

e A study undertaken by the DoD has determined that historical activities undertaken
at the AACO have resulted in the contamination of groundwater by these chemicals.

¢ PFOS is present in water from Council’s Oakey Bore 7 and Oakey Boxe
concentrations in excess of the USEPA’s provisional limit of 0.2 mjigrogpars/L. This
limit is derived from animal studies and includes highly conserva 1

s Water from these bores was used to supply the Oakey ROP fro

time frame in

which residents could have been exposed to PFOS contamii king water.

» Without treatment, the maximum possible PFOS in the supply during
this period is 0.5 micrograms/L.
e Reverse osmosis has been shown to be highly effe rdving PFOS from

drinking water at concentrations significantly pigirect 2 estimated maximum
Oakey RO feed water concentration. The Oakg i therefore reasonably

expected to have reduced the PFOS centkakion in 3
supply to less than the USEPA provisiohg M

N
&
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Thursday, 4 June 2015 1:52 PM

To: Rebecca Richardson; Sophie Dwyer; Greg Jackson; Janet Cumming; Suzanne Huxley;
Peter Boland

Subject: RE: Oakey Task force - catch up

Hi all

I think it would be useful if Matt Boyd, cluster operations manager for the Oakey region participated in this T/C as he
can provide the latest information from the affected area. It is also important to have Matt on board when
considering our communication strategy.

Would you please provide the dial in details for Matt so he can participate.

Regards
Penny

From: Rebecca Richardson

Sent: Tuesday, 2 June 2015 2:43 PM
To: Rebecca Richardson; Sophie Dwyer; Greg Jackson; Janet Cu
Boland

Subject: Oakey Task force - catch up
When: Friday, 5 June 2015 1:00 PM-1:30 PM (GMT+10¢
Where: Sophie's office

e Huxley; Penny Hutchinson; Peter

A weekly catch up to update on progress | have attachedg'the/groject plan.
Penny and Peter we will call you at 1pm.

Regards

Rebecca

<< File: Oakey Task Force Proj an May 2845 vl.doc >>

&
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Project Plan — Current Queensland Government Task Force activities to address the contamination of Oakey groundwater by chemicals from the Army Aviation Centre at
Oakey. On track key: Green =on track or completed; Amber = delayed; Red=not progressing

Responsibility Current status Expected On track?

delivery date

1 Epidemiology — check of cancer registry DoH — Suzanne Huxley | List of possible cancers determined. To be requested 07 June 2015
from Epi on 01 June 2015.

2 Consult with DNRM regarding exclusion zone DoH — Janet Cumming | List of contacts at DNRM received from DoD /ﬁﬁ 2015
3 Validation of analytical results (EnTOX, NMI) DoH — Sophie/Janet Email received from DoD that they have authorj @
to discuss issues with Sophie Dwyer and Pen

Hutchinson. Jochen Mueller (UQ)ackn

request. //') J\

4 Prepare medical communication to GPs treating | DDPHU
Oakey residents @

5 Consult with Biosecurity QLD re food crops in DoH — Janet Cumming | List of contacts at B| W from DoD 15 June 2015
contamination zone

Mllcly released and as such | 01 June 2015
er | ab release his copy of the report
sts ¢ ing ASA directly.

7 Collate and prepare all relevant matters for DoH — Sophle net \ sMne 2015 30 June 2015

6 Consult with EnTOX re literature review DoH — Sophie Dwyer
prepared for Air Services Australia (ASA) <

briefing up (matter to note)

8 Consult with Safe Food Production Queensland hle/Jan t List of questions prepared for SFPQ and provided to
(SFPQ) re Oakey abattoir and water use Sophie on 01 June 2015. SFPQ emailed on 02 June

A’\ 2015.
9 Contact ASA directly for a full copy of the feglth
report /\

P

N

000000 000
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Friday, 22 May 2015 11:54 AM

To: Sophie Dwyer; Janet Cumming; Greg Jackson; Peter Boland; Suzanne Huxley; Clive
Paige

Subject: RE: Internal meeting to discuss Army Aviation centre Oakey investigation into

contaminated groundwater

Hi all

| can do 12 midday Monday or 2 pm Wednesday. Please provide your preferred time as soon as possible.
Regards

Penny

From: Sophie Dwyer @
Sent: Wednesday, 20 May 2015 3:07 PM

To: Penny Hutchinson; Janet Cumming; Greg Jackson; Peter Boland; Suzan ; Clive Paige
Subject: RE: Internal meeting to discuss Army Aviation centre Oakey inve info contaminated groundwater

Dear Penny
That would be great. We should have draft notes from the meeting plan’ ready by then. Monday
between 10 and 1, or after 2 on Tuesday is ok for me.

regards @

th MQueensland Government

Sophie Dwyer

Executive Director, Health Protection
Chief Health Officer Branch, Department
15 Butterfield Steet, QLD
t. 07 33289266 m.

e. sophie.dwyer@health.qld.gov.au | www.

nvmn \V

(&) © £)
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From: Penny Hutchinson

Sent: Wednesday, 20 May 2015 2:41 PM

To: Sophie Dwyer; Janet Cumming; Greg Jackson; Peter Boland; Suzanne Huxley; Clive Paige

Subject: Internal meeting to discuss Army Aviation centre Oakey investigation into contaminated groundwater

Hi all

Following on from today’s meeting with Department of Defence | think it would be useful for DDPHU and HPU to
discuss these issues. Would it be possible to catch up early next week say Monday or Tuesday?

Please advise your availability.
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
E: penny.hutchinson@health.gld.gov.au

Web: hitp://www.health.gld.gov.au/darlingdowns/ @

2
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Suzanne Huxley

From: Peter Boland

Sent: Friday, 4 September 2015 12:33 PM

To: oakey-idc

Cc: Suzanne Huxley; Janet Cumming; Uma Rajappa; Penny Hutchinson
Subject: RE: Version 2 - Draft dot points for media

Attachments: Dot points for press release SueH JC changes.docx

Hi Peta,

Generally it looks good. Penny and | only have a couple of minor comments.

ith “is taking action to
o ggntinue to refer people

You could replace ”has taken action to prevent further contamination and has prg ﬁ'
prevent further contamination and is providing” (see Penny’s comment). We shouhd/4
with concerns to the DoD project hotline.

Thanks,

Peter.

Peter Boland

Manager Environmental Health | Darling Downs Public Health Ui
Darling Downs Hospital and Health Service
Ground Floor, Browne House

Baillie Henderson Hospital

Cnr Tor & Hogg Street

PO Box 405

TOOWOOMBA QLD 4350

P: 07 4699 8252 | F: 07 4699 8477

M;:
E: Peter.Boland@health.gld.gov.au

Web: http://www.health.qld.qov.au/déd\mdowns/
From: oakey-idc

Sent: Thursday, 3 September 2015 3:

To: Suzanne Huxley; Uma gi ppa; Peter Boland; Janet Cumming

Subject: Version 2 - Dyaf points for media
Good afternoon,
Attached is version 2 (incorporating Janet and Suzanne’s feedback) for your input.

Would it be possible to receive all feedback as soon as possible —we would like to clear it through Sophie tomorrow
before she goes on holiday.

Kind Regards,
Peta

From: oakey-idc
Sent: Thursday, 3 September 2015 12:00 PM

1
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To: Suzanne Huxley; Uma Rajappa; Peter Boland; Janet Cumming
Subject: Draft dot points for media

Good afternoon,
Please find attached draft dot points for your feedback.

Kind Regards,

Peta Mason

A/Administration Officer,

Health Protection Branch | Office of the Chief Health Officer and DDG Prevention Division
Department of Health | Queensland Government

15 Butterfield St Herston QLD 4006

t. 07 3328 9205

e. peta.mason2@health.qld.gov.au | www.health.qld.gov.au

.3 Customers First ®Idraa into action @I.Inl.cnh potential é‘) Be courageous @ D Pryale ) Queensland

overnment
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Department of Health

DS Oakey Incident

Media statement

Between 1970 and 2005 the Department of Defence used fire-fighting foam containing
perfluorinated chemicals (PFCs) (perflurecooctane sulphonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic
acid (PFOA)) at the Oakey Army Aviation Centre on the Darling Downs.

Ground water at the base site and in the surrounding area has since been identified as
contaminated with PFCs.

alternative drinking water to residents who were using groundwater in the contaminat ea
their potable water supply. As further exposure pathways are identified, it is expected/tha ice will
be provided to the community, and appropriate remedial action taken.

contamination.

Queensland Government continues to liaise with Defence on the issue gre-is ¢
taking steps to investigate and manage the contamination. Queensla "5

that they are
as offered to
provide support and assistance should Defence require it.

We would like to reassure the community that we will continue

Our most important concern is ensuring that the health and |i
are safeguarded.

Currently there is limited research into the health ri

regard.

We know that overall levels of PFCs in the blood
We recommend that residents reduc

Queensland Government advises
Defence. The Department of D
exposure pathways and provi

pportunity.
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_ ~ -| Comment [PH1]: They aren’t

preventing contamination the water
tank is still leaking PFOS and PFOA

- {Comment [3C2]: Department of?

Comment [PB3]: | would continue
to refer people to the hotline and
website set up by the DoD to
manage the incident.

Community Hotline Number 1800 136
129

For more information, email
defence.oakey.anz @aecom.com

Comment [JC4]: It took a bit of
finding, but the DoD website says:
Exposure to Hazardous Materials

If you suspect you have been exposed
to a hazardous substance contact the
Defence Exposure to Hazardous
Substance or Material Inquiry Line on
1800 000 655

Or

Environment & Engineering Branch -
For more information please email
environmentandheritage@defence.g
ov.au.

Queensland
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
P: F: 07 4699 8477 @

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

Sent: Monday, 21 September 2015 8:28 AM

To: Peter Boland; Madhumati Chatterji

Subject: FW: Hight Priority! : Oakey - Army Aviation Centre - Groundwater Investigation
Attachments: Att. 1 RAAF-site-contamination.pdf; ATT2 PFC Oakey Factsheet.pdf; Att 3 DoH

Advice to GPs final.pdf, MOD Qld Health Oakey18092015.doc

Importance: High

Hi Peter and Madhu

Please find attached copies of info re Oakey, including a proforma of the results le @
The decision to distribute the fact sheets was not made until late Friday night, so so n’t send them to you
sooner.

Regards
Suzanne @
From: Victoria Chalmers

Sent: Friday, 18 September 2015 8:07 PM
To: Kim McFarlane; Andrew Love; Antoinette Filius; Caroli es;~Bamian Killoran; David Karle; Jane Conrad; Jillian
Martin; Joanne Lohrisch; Judith Dickson; Kay Davidson; n g; Lisa Courtney; Lisa Lee; Louise Smith; Lynette
Cramb; Marinda Vorster; Melissa Tonks; Michael Paws Patth;, Patrice Peebles; Rachel Olorenshaw; Tracey
Chadwick; Vanessa Tait; Vee Leddiman; Wynita Mahe Bfddley; Catherine McIntyre; Donna Dawson; Gary
Bennett; Graeme Filippi

Cc: Suzanne Huxley; Helen Little; Jeannette
Subject: Hight Priority! : Oakey - Army Aviz
Importance: High

Groundwater Investigation

Good evening all

| have just been advised by the

Over the past couple of mon s been an issue that the Dept of Deference has been addressing in
Oakey. There has been a

The following website
http://www.defence.

The development this weﬁt approx. 75 local residents have taken up the offer to have blood tests done by
S&N. On Wednesday S&N mailed the results of the tests directly to patients. The letter template is attached for
your reference and you will notice it refers to people who are concerned to see their GP or call 13 HEALTH. The
letters also included the attached Att. 1 RAAF-site-contamination.pdf document which is in relation to a similar
situation in NSW. Some residents may have received the letter today but it is more likely letters will be received
early next week.

Damian and Marinda please ensure tonight that all nursing staff are made aware of the situation and of the
following process.

In the event we receive calls over the week please ensure:

DOH-DL 1.6/17-042 suge ro. 11



e Normal triage assessment process is followed for people with symptoms

e RN’s to advise OC or TL that they have/had a caller regarding the Oakey situation. OC/TL to maintain a
record of callers (either caller name or Psaim ID).

e RN’s to use the attached factsheet ATT 2 PFC Oakey Factsheet.pdf to respond to patient concerns. This
factsheet can be emailed to patients and if any callers asked it to be mailed please note the patients name
so as SIFT can retrieve address, etc from Psiam and the factsheet will be posted on Monday.

e RN'’s to use the attached factsheet named Att 3 DoH Advice to GPs final/pdf to respond to healthcare
professionals concerns. This factsheet can be emailed to healthcare professionals (I am of the view mail will
not be required).

Please contact me at any time if you have questions/concerns my mobile number is 0438 732 106.

Victoria Chalmers

Director

Health Contact Centre

Health Support Queensland | Department of Health | Queensland Government
GPO Box 48 Brisbane QLD 4001

t. 07 3877 8252

m. 0438 732 106

e. Victoria.Chalmers@bhealth.gld.gov.au | www.health.gld.gov.au

fI Ain
Healthﬁupport

2
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PFOS and PFOA

Wik
NSW

GOVERNMENT

Health

Willlamtown RAAF site contamination

What is the issue?

The issue is that some related chemicals
(perfluorinated compounds) have been used
and remain in the environment around the
Williamtown RAAF site. The Australian Defence
Force (ADF) has informed the NSW government
that the Williamtown site has been found to
contain high concentrations of PFOS and other
closely related chemicals. These chemicals are
present on the site and over the past decades
have slowly worked their way through the soil to
the groundwater underneath the site. These

substances have not only contaminated the RAAF

site itself, but also land close to the site. Surface
water samples from Dawsons Drain, Moors Drai
Upper Tilligerry Creek and Fourteen Foot Drain
have been found to contain PFOS. Ground waig
and fish from the local creeks were tested foy

This fact sheet is interim advice by NS

and will be updated as fur: investigations are
undertaken.

What areas

potentially affe ?

See attached r the area*with potentially
and for the location of
ting will be

rly identify areas of potential

undertaken to
health risk.

What are PFOS and PFOA?

Perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) are man-made
chemicals belonging to the group known as
perfluorinated chemicals (PFCs). PFCs have
been used by numerous industries and have
been contained in products such as in textiles,
leather products, metal plating, protective

coating, cleaning products, pesticides and fire
fighting foams.

PFOS and PFOA are
that do not break dq
can persist for

Sip[e]
environment

potential health

exposed to these chemicals have not consistently
wn adverse health effects, though impact on
blo¥d cholesterol levels, thyroid function and liver
ize have been reported in some studies. Mothers
exposed to high levels of PFOA in the drinking
water did not have an increased risk of birth
defects in their children. There are approximately
30 000 chemicals in use across Australia. For the
vast majority of these, including PFOS and PFOA,
very little is known about possible health effects
in people.

Where there is not enough scientific evidence to
assess health effects in humans, any effects in
animals are then assessed. Certain laboratory
experiments on rats have indicated some
potential to promote cancer, but it is not clear if
these results have implications for human health.

How are people exposed
to PFOS and PFOA?

Studies in America have shown that almost
everyone is exposed to low levels of PFOS and
PFOA just by living in the modern world. People
may be exposed to PFCs from the air, indoor dust,
food, water, and various consumer products.
Contaminated foods, particularly fish and eggs,
are thought to be the main source of exposure.

September 2015

© NSW Ministry of Health
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What can | do to reduce my
exposure?

Don't eat fish, prawns or oysters from the
following areas: Dawsons Drain, Moors Drain,
Upper Tilligerry Creek , Fourteen Foot Drain and
Fullerton Cove. See map for fishery closures.

If you live in the area with potentially affected
groundwater indicated on the accompanying map
additional precautions are advised:

* Don’t drink or prepare food with bore water
from this area. It is safe to drink water from the
reticulated water supply (town water).

* Don’t eat eggs from your own backyard

* Don’t drink milk from cows or goats grazing in
this area

Wik
NSW Health

GOVERNMENT

Is there a test to determine
likely health effects?

While blood tests can provide a measure of PFOS,
they are not recommended because they don’t
predict level of health risk.

If you have any health concerns, please consult
your general practitioner.

Further information
www.health.nsw.g
@i 2 Updated 11 September 2015

© NSW Ministry of Health
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Queensland Health

Oakey Army Aviation Centre

Perfluorinated chemicals contamination incident

What are perfluorinated chemicals?

Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS) and the related chemicals perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and
perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHxS) are types of perfluorinated chemicals (PFCs). They can be found in
everyday products such as all-weather clothing, water and stain repelling agents and non-stick cookware.
These chemicals are also used in aqueous film forming foams (AFFFs), used by the Department of
Defence and others, for training and operational firefighting purposes.

Between 1970 and 2005 the Department of Defence used fire-fighting foam co W

Army Aviation Centre on the Darling Downs. PFCs are present on the site, and\o¥er the past decades have
slowly worked their way through the soil to the groundwater underneath t ite a dntaminated land

close to the site. The Department of Defence is undertaking environmerjtal ing to determine the
extent of the contamination.

RFCs at the Oakey

Why are these chemicals being phased o

\imited through international

The manufacture and use of some PFCs are being disconi
' se of their persistence in the

agreements and voluntary actions by manufacturer ar
environment, rather than because of any established h . PFCs break down very slowly in the
environment under naturally occurring conditions. e is, they tend to accumulate in the food chain
and in human tissue. The international scientific ¢ itythas identified this characteristic as undesirable
because of the potential for unforeseen effeets_r ng ffem accumulating levels, and the difficulty in

y are released.

The potential effects of exposure to PFCs to human health continue to be studied. These studies involve
occupationally exposed workers (i.e. manufacturing workers), residents in communities with higher
exposure and studies of the general population in the USA and other countries.

Some studies have shown changes in serum lipids and other biochemical indicators that appear to be
related to blood levels of PFOS, PFOA and other PFCs. There are no acute (immediate) health effects
reported to be associated with exposure at levels observed at Oakey. There is also no conclusive evidence

Qsland
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as cancer. Even in heavily exposed manufacturing workers (up to 1,000 times higher than the general
population), studies have not consistently found any adverse health effects directly attributable to this
exposure. However, as research in this area is still in its early stages, a cautious approach is best and so
exposure should be minimized.

Studies of chemical effects in animals are conducted at very high doses in order to give scientists an idea of
what effects might occur and to provide a basis for estimating safe human exposure levels. For example,
adverse effects are observed in animal studies of PFOA at exposures that lead to blood levels 1,000 to
10,000 times higher than the levels observed in people in the general populatio file such studies help
scientists to identify toxic responses to a chemical, this information cannot be ¢ efated to humans
who are exposed at much lower concentrations. While everyone in the populatis to have been
exposed to PFCs, the level of these exposures is substantially less than xposures used in animal
studies. Also, animals clear these chemicals from their bodies in differe m humans, so results
from animal testing cannot be directly applied to humans.

A

If you live in the area with potentially affected groundwater, , ed on the accompanying map
provided by Department of Defence, you should not NG ood with bore water from this area.
While the exposure is likely to be low, you may also con ding consumption of eggs or drinking milk

from animals raised on your own property and avojd tion of fish caught from Oakey Creek,

Ongoing investigations by the Departm G ¢/ expected to provide further information on the
likelihood of exposure to PFCs from soy er than groundwater.

It is safe to drink water from the reticulat ater supply (town water), and to consume commercial produce
from the Oakey area.

Department of Defence {ids a ed for a limited number of people to have their blood tested for PFCs.
The Department of Health does n commended blood testing because this does not predict the level of
health risk.

Concerned comrR
Number 1800 136 .
defence.oakey.anz@aesqQm.com. Anyone concerned about their own health or that of family members
should talk to their GP or call 13HEALTH (13 43 25 84).
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Queensland Health

Oakey Army Aviation Centre
contamination incident Practitioners

Information for Medical

Key Points

Residents living in some areas adjacent to the Oakey Army Aviation Centre have been alerted to potential
exposures to perfluorinated chemicals (PFCs).

Health effects are not expected but the potential for adverse health effects cannot be excluded.

Exposure of Residents

Blood testing of some of these residents for perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PF ly@rooctanoic acid
(PFOA) and perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHxS) was undertaken by S&N P ogy/ As part of an
agreement with the Department of Defence. Results of these blood tests be tributed directly to
the individuals in the week commencing 14 September 2015.

It is possible that residents will present with health concerns for furth t. Blood tests are not
helpful in predicting the level of health risk, are not readily availablg anga recommended.

Advice to Residents

Queensland Health advises that residents in the potentially
with bore water. While the exposure is likely to be lo [
avoiding consumption of eggs or drinking milk from a '
consumption of fish caught from Oakey Creek, downstre rom the Army Aviation Centre.

a should not drink or prepare food
also been advised to consider

It is safe to drink water from the reticulated water 0
from the Oakey area.

ater) and to consume commercial produce

en xpected to provide further information on the
er than groundwater.

Ongoing investigations by the Departme
likelihood of exposure to PFCs from so

ySj¥e evidence, at this stage, which links exposure to these chemicals with long term
adverse health effectsimbumans, such as cancer. Some studies have shown changes in serum lipids and
other biochemical indicatars which are related to the blood levels of PFOS, PFOA and other PFCs.

Even in heavily exposed manufacturing workers, studies have not consistently found any adverse health
effects directly attributable to PFC exposure. However, as research in this area is still ongoing, a cautious
approach is recommended and exposure should be minimized.

Details on PFOS and PFOA are provided in the fact sheet available on the Queensland Health website.
Further information will be shared as it becomes available.

Please contact the Darling Downs Health Public Health Unit on 46998240 if you require additional health
advice related to this issue.

Qesland
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Sullivan
September 2015 NICOlaIdES
PATHOLOGY

Quuality is in our DNA

Dear

Defence has been communicating with Oakey residents living near the Army Aviation Centre Oakey (AACO) about
perfluorinated chemicals (PFCs), including perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA)
detected in local ground (bore) water. PFOS and PFOA were included in fire fighting foams used between 1970 and
2005 at AACO. PFOS and PFOA have historically been used widely, including in fabric pratection, water proofing and
non-stick cooking appliances. It is therefore likely that most Australians have had som&€xpogure to these chemicals.
PFCs are commonly found in every person’s blood. é

Late last year, Defence invited residents to participate in blood testing. The m cus of testing was on those who:

1. lived within the contamination detection area, and

to~wferm you of your results. This blood testing
measured several PFCs present in your blood; PFOS, perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHxS), which is

potential to affect health. Limited
Health in  New Sou%Wa
http://www.health.nsw.gov. actsheets

to speak to Queenslapd Hea
that Defence has c Jith the Queensland Health and briefed local general practitioners in anticipation that
s.seek z

has recently developed a fact sheet, available at
s/RAAF-site-contamination.aspx

Yours sincerely,

David Rowbottom,

Business Development Manager,
Commercial Testing,

Sullivan Nicolaides Pathology
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Results from Perfluorinated Chemical Analysis

Participant name:
Blood collection date:

What levels of PFCs were measured in my blood?

Your serum concentrations of perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS); perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and
perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHxS) are shown below in Table 1.

Table 1 Your serum concentration (ng/mL serum) of PFOS, PFOA and PFHxS

PFOS PFOA PFHxS
You
Australian average' 10.25 4.45 I
USA average’ 9.32 3.07 (16¢// A

!Average concentrations from a Queensland study. Samples from 2010-2011

I
’Average concentrations from a USA study. Samples from 2009-2010 @

How does my level compare to others in the community?

In the figure below we show how your level of PFOS (green line) compa

1. The general Australian community in 2006-2007 (shown
The general United States community in 2009-2 how

3. A group of workers who were occupationally expos fluorochemicals at a 3M manufacturing facility in

the USA in 2000 (shown in red).

fb@

Figure 1: Serum cg
(orange), and 3M
vertical axis shows PFOS\concentration in ng/mL serum, the coloured boxes indicate the geometric mean
concentrations, and the whiskers indicate the 95™ percentile concentration reported in these groups (maximum
concentration for 3M study). The levels in 3M workers are much higher so the vertical (y-) axis of this graph has been
split in two.

Abbreviations: perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS); perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHxS); perfluorooctanoic

acid (PFOA); ng/mL (nanograms per millilitre). 1 nanogram = 0.000001 milligram. 1 ng/mL = 1 part of a substance
in a billion parts of serum.
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